
 
 
 
 

 
Rita G. Jonse, Mayor 
Gil Burrell, Place 1 

Maria Amezcua, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 2 
Anne Weir, Place 3 

Danny Scarbrough, Place 4 
 Deja Hill, Place 5  

Valerie Dye, Place 6 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, November 6, 2019 7:00 p.m. 
  Manor City Hall – Council Chambers 

105 E. Eggleston Street 
 

City of Manor   Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 
Declaring the week of November 18-22, 2019, as “National Hunger and Homeless Awareness Week” 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 
Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three 
(3) minutes per person. Comments on specific agenda items must be made when the item comes before the 
Council. To address the City Council, please complete the white card and present it to the City Secretary prior to 
the meeting. No Action May be Taken by the City Council During Public Comments 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will 
be enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor 
or a Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered 
separately. 

1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council   
Minutes of the October 16, 2019, Regular Meeting.  

Lluvia T. Almaraz, 
City Secretary 

 



 
 
 
City Council Regular Session Agenda 
November 6, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing regarding the annexation of 30.86 
acres, more or less, adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and being located 
at 13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX. Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: Gordon Weir 

Thomas Bolt,  
City Manager 

3. Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing regarding the rezoning of 30.86 acres 
of land more or less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 Abstract No. 
315, and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 East, Manor, TX, from 
ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2). Applicant: Kimley-
Horn & Associates Owner: Gordon Weir 

Scott Dunlop, 
Asst. Dev. Services 
Director 

REGULAR AGENDA 

4. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance 
annexing 30.86 acres, more or less, adjacent and contiguous to the city limits 
and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX. Applicant: Kimley-
Horn & Associates Owner: Gordon Weir 

Thomas Bolt, 
City Manager 
 

5. First Reading: Consideration, discussion and possible action on an ordinance 
rezoning 30.86 acres of land more or less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey 
No. 63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 East, Manor, 
TX, from ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2). Applicant: 
Kimley-Horn & Associates Owner: Gordon Weir 

Scott Dunlop, 
Asst. Dev. Services 
Director 
 
 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance approving a Tax 
Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Manor Final Project and 
Finance Plan.  

Thomas Bolt,  
City Manager 
 

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an amendment to the 
Development Agreement (Manor Heights).   

Thomas Bolt,  
City Manager 

8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Assignment and 
Assumption of the Development Agreement regarding Manor Heights.   

Thomas Bolt 
City Manager 

9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on award of a contract addendum 
for professional services for the FY 2019 Capital Metro BCT Paving 
Improvements Project. 

Frank T. Phelan, 
P.E., City Engineer 
 

10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on award of a contract addendum 
for Advisory Consulting services for the 2020 Community Impact Fee Update 
project. 

Frank T. Phelan, 
P.E., City Engineer 
 

11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending 
Manor Code of Ordinances by adding Article 1.14 Public Tree Care to Chapter 
1, General Provisions establishing public tree care regulations and establishing 
a public tree advisory committee. 

Scott Dunlop, 
Asst. Dev. Services 
Director 
 

12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on naming the new City’s Park 
on Lexington Street.  

Thomas Bolt, 
City Manager 

 



 
 
 
City Council Regular Session Agenda 
November 6, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
  

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive 
session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas 
Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property), 
§551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations 
regarding Security Devices) and §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations). 

  
 
POSTING CERTIFICATION  

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the City Hall of the 
City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the 
following date and time: Friday, November 1, 2019, by 5:00 p.m. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding 
the scheduled time of said meeting.  

  /s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
         City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 
 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council 
Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.272.5555 or e-mail 
ltijerina@cityofmanor.org 



PROCLAMATION 
WHEREAS, for over 27 years the National Coalition for the Homeless and National Student 
Campaign Against Hunger and Homelessness have sponsored National Hunger and Homelessness 
Awareness Week; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the proclamation is to educate the public about the many reasons 
people are hungry and homeless including the shortage of affordable housing in Travis County for 
very low-income residents; and to encourage support for homeless assistance service providers as 
well as community service opportunities for students and school service organizations; and 

WHEREAS, there are many organizations committed to sheltering and providing supportive 
services as well as meals and food supplies to people experiencing homelessness including:  

Manor ISD, Manor School Board Members, Salvation Army, Life Works, Foundation for the 
Homeless, Family with Voices, Intrical Care, Project Hope- Manor ISD- Parent Engagement, 
Manor Counselors and Social Workers, Communities in Schools, SAFE Austin, Manor ISD 
Partnership, Wellness, and Foundation: Manor’s Faith based Alliance, Manor Chamber of 
Commerce, Manor Education Foundation, Manor College, Career, and Military Readiness, 
Advocacy Outreach, Manor East Rural, Goodwill, Texas Homeless Education Office, Region 13- 
Homeless Services, and the Manor City; and  

WHEREAS, the theme of National Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week in Manor ISD 
and Manor, Texas is “Sock It to Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week 2019,” with plans to 
culminate the event on Monday, November 18, 2019 at the Manor ISD regular called school board 
meeting. 

WHEREAS, the Project Hope-Manor ISD recognize that hunger and homelessness continue to be 
a serious problem for many individuals and families in Manor ISD and Travis County, it is 
imperative that we acknowledge the week, but make plans to work on this agenda all year long; 
and  

WHEREAS, the intent of National Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week is consistent with 
the activities of Manor ISD- Project Hope. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I Rita G. Jonse, Mayor of the City of Manor, and behalf of the Manor City 
Council, do hereby proclaim the week of November 18-22, 2019, as;  

“NATIONAL HUNGER AND HOMELESSNESS AWARENESS WEEK” 

in the city of Manor and I encourage all citizens to recognize that many people do not have housing 
and need support from citizens, and private/public nonprofit service entities.  

PROCLAIMED this the 6th day of November 2019.  

 

_____________________________ 

 Rita G. Jonse, Mayor  
 City of Manor  



 AGENDA ITEM NO.______

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 
 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:       

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:  
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE  

1

November 6, 2019

Lluvia T. Almaraz,City Secretary

Administration 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the October 16, 
2019, Regular Meeting. 

 

October 16, 2019, Regular Meeting Minutes

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve the City Council Minutes of the October 16,  
2019, Regular Meeting. 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES 

OCTOBER 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PRESENT: 
 
Rita G. Jonse, Mayor  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
Gil Burrell, Place 1 (Absent) 
Maria Amezcua, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 2  
Anne R. Weir, Place 3 
Danny Scarbrough, Place 4  
Deja Hill, Place 5  
Valerie Dye, Place 6 
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 
Debbie Charbonneau, Community Development Manager 
Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
Sarah Friberg, Court Administrator 
Michael Tuley, Public Works Director 
Anthony Valchar, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Veronica Rivera, Legal Counsel 
Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer 
 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.  
 
 With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council 
was called to order by Mayor Jonse at 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 16, 2019, in the Council 
Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 At the request of Mayor Jonse, Director of Finance Collins, led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A. Declaring November 1, 2019, as “Texas Arbor Day”    
 

 Mayor Jonse read and presented a proclamation declaring Friday, November 1, 2019, as 
“Texas Arbor Day” to Michael Tuley, Public Works Director and Anthony Valchar, Assistant 
Director of Public Works.  

B. Declaring the Week of November 4-8, 2019, as “Municipal Court Week” 
 

 Mayor Jonse read and presented a proclamation declaring the week of November 4-8, 2019, 
as “Municipal Court Week” to Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk, and Lydia Collins, Director of 
Finance. 

  
PRESENTATION 
 
Recognition of outgoing Associate Judge Phyllis Mathison, presented by Mayor Rita G. 
Jonse  
 

Mayor Jonse read and presented a plaque of recognition to Associate Judge Phyllis 
Mathison.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Dory West with the Manor Arts Council spoke to City Council regarding two (2) proposals to 
be considered regarding Jennie Lane Park restroom facilities and the picket fence park. She 
suggested for the restroom facility at Jennie Lane Park be considered as a potential public art 
opportunity for Local Artists and Manor ISD Students. She also proposed for a Resolution 
designating the picket fence park as a new City Park and suggested new Park Names by Manor 
Arts Council.   
 

No one else appeared to speak at this time.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the 

October 2, 2019, 2019, Regular Meeting.  
 
2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the September 2019 

Departmental Reports:  

 Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
 Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Assistant Dev. Services Director   
 Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau 
 Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 
 Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 
 Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief of Police Phipps invited everyone to attend the Manor Night at the Park Event 

formally known as National Night Out on Friday, October 18, 2019 at Timmermann’s Park 
from 5:30 p.m. to 9:30 p.m.    

 
The discussion was held regarding the parking for the event.  

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 

Weir the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to approve and adopt all 
items on the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3. Public Hearing: Consideration, discussion, and possible action upon a Concept Plan for 

the Manor Commons SE Commercial, nineteen (19) lots on 73 acres more or less, located 
near US Hwy 290 E and FM 973 N, Manor, TX. Applicant: ALM Engineering Owner: 
Greenview Development 973 L.P 

 
 Mayor Jonse opened the public hearing. 
 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council deny a Concept Plan for the 

Manor Commons SE Commercial, nineteen (19) lots on 73 acres more or less, located near US 
Hwy 290 E and FM 973 N, Manor, TX. 

 
Assistant Development Services Director Dunlop stated the plans would be resubmitted 

after the review of Engineers.    
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 

Dye the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to deny a Concept Plan for 
the Manor Commons SE Commercial, nineteen (19) lots on 73 acres more or less, 
located near US Hwy 290 E and FM 973 N, Manor, TX. The motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
4. Public Hearing and First Reading: Consideration, discussion and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 30.86 acres of land more or less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey 
No. 63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 East, Manor, TX, from 
ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2). Applicant: Kimley-Horn & 
Associates Owner: Gordon Weir 

 
 Mayor Jonse opened the public hearing. 
 

The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council conduct the public hearing of 
an ordinance rezoning 30.86 acres of land more or less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 
63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 East, Manor, TX, from 
ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2). 

 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 

  Scott Dunlop, Asst. Development Services Director, was available to address any questions 
posed by the City Council. 

 
  Carolyn Weir, 13119 Highway 290 East, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in support of this 

item; however, she did not wish to speak but was available to address any questions posed by 
the City Council. 

 
  Brandon Robinson with Carriage Hills HOA spoke before City Council in opposition of 

this item. Mr. Robinson expressed his and the HOA’s concerns regarding the rezoning and new 
development for the location. Mr. Robinson requested for Council to not approve an RV Park 
development in this location due to sewer and flooding issues.  

 
  Casey Carver, 12917 Pealing Way, Manor, Texas, spoke before City Council in opposition 

of this item. Mr. Carver expressed his concerns regarding the erosion issues this type of 
development would bring to the community.  

 
  Tyler Burke, 12701 Wedding Drive, Manor, Texas, spoke before City Council in 

opposition of this item.  Mr. Burke is in support of the annexation for this area but is opposing 
the development of an RV Park.  He suggested for Council to rezone property for single family 
homes development or businesses that would benefit the City of Manor.  

 
  Andrew Myers, 12856 St. Mary Drive, Manor, Texas, spoke before City Council in 

opposition of this item.  Mr. Myers expressed his and Bell Farms HOA concerns regarding the 
proposed RV Park development.  He requested for Council to protect the community’s security 
and the property value of their homes.  

 
  Brandon Parry, 12929 Corrillon Way, Manor, Texas, spoke before City Council in 

opposition of this item.  Mr. Parry expressed his concerns regarding the RV Park development.  
 
  Crystal Almaguer, 12760 Saint Mary Dr., Manor, Texas, spoke before City Council in 

opposition of this item. Ms. Almaguer expressed her concerns regarding the erosion and 
environmental issues regarding the RV Park development. She also expressed her concerns 
regarding the connection of neighborhoods to the RV Park for emergency services.  She stated 
she is supporting the annexation of the land by the City but would like to see a different type 
of development that would allow the City to regulate properly.  

 
  Kelly Baker, 13001 Carillon Way, Manor, Texas, spoke before City Council in opposition 

of this item.  Ms. Baker expressed her concerns regarding the RV Park development.  She 
stated she was in support of the annexation by the City but would like to see single family 
homes or businesses built in that location.  

 
  Alondra Hernandez, 12617 Casting Drive, Manor, Texas submitted a card in opposition of 

this item; however, she did not wish to speak. 
 
  Janine Wise, 133525 Ring Drive, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition of this 

item; however, she did not wish to speak. 
 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

  Victoria Van Patten, 12828 Door Bell Drive, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition 
of this item; however, she did not wish to speak. 

 
  Harvey Morales, 12929 Corrillon Way, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition of 

this item; however, he did not wish to speak. 
   
  Maxwell Nisus, 12828 Door Bell Drive, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition of 

this item; however, he did not wish to speak. 
 
  City Manager Bolt discussed the RV Park development. He stated the developer had 

approached the city and was requesting annexation and rezoning of the property. City Manager 
Bolt stated he also did not want this type of development in that area but at this time the city 
had no regulations due to the property not being annexed to the city.   

 
  City Manager Bolt opened the floor for discussion and questions.     
 
  The discussion was held regarding other options for development after annexation.   
 
  The discussion was held regarding the city annexing the property as agriculture.  
 
  The discussion was held regarding rezoning concerns for C-2 regulations.   
 
  The discussion was held regarding the timing of development.  
 
  The discussion was held regarding the development process.  
   
  The discussion was held regarding the involvement of the County Commissioner. 
 
  The discussion was held regarding regulations for the RV Park Development.  
 
  The discussion was held regarding Travis County development regulations. 
 
  City Manager Bolt explained the zoning categories regulations.  
   
  Mayor Jonse adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive 

Session at 7:49 p.m. Wednesday, October 16, 2019, in accordance with the requirements of 
the Open Meetings Law. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Manor City Council convened into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071 
Consultation with Attorney, at 7:49 p.m., on Wednesday, October 16, 2019, City Council 
Conference Room of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.  

The Executive Session was adjourned at 8:20 p.m. on Wednesday, October 16, 2019.   
 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

OPEN SESSION  
 
 The City Council reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 
Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session at        
8:20 p.m. on Wednesday, October 16, 2019, in the Council Chambers of the Manor City Hall. 
 
 Mayor Jonse opened the floor for action to be taken on the items discussed in the Executive 
Session.    
 
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Amezcua the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to continue the Public 
Hearing open and take no action.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 

Scarbrough the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to postpone the first 
reading of the rezoning request to the November 6, 2019, Regular Council Meeting. 
The motion carried unanimously.   

 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 
5. Consideration, discussion and possible action on ratifying the bylaws for the City's TIRZ 

Board. 
 

 The City staff's recommendation was that the City Council approve the bylaws for the 
City's TIRZ Board. 
 
 The discussion was held regarding the TIRZ annual meeting for reviewing the TIRZ 
bylaws by the Board of Directors.   
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 
Hill the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to approve the bylaws for the 
City's TIRZ Board. The motion carried unanimously.  

 
6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an award for Solid Waste Collection 

and Disposal and Recycle Services for the City of Manor. 
 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council award the Solid Waste 

Collection and Disposal and Recycle Services for the City of Manor to Waste Connections; 
and Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a final contract.     

 
  Gary Gauci with Waste Management spoke before City Council in opposition of this item.   
 He discussed the RFP Bid Meeting conducted by the City and process of the comparison of 

prices from other vendors.  Mr. Gauci thanked the City for the transition from Republic to 
Waste Management and stated he was available to address any questions posed by the City 
Council. Mr. Gauci requested for Council to continue the trash services with Waste 
Management for the City of Manor.   

 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  Jay Howard with Texas Disposal Systems spoke before City Council regarding the services 

provided by Texas Disposal System.  Mr. Howard stated Texas Disposal Systems was a local 
family owned business since 1977.  He discussed how customer service issues are handled and 
managed promptly. He discussed the recycling and compost services offered by Texas 
Disposal Systems.  Mr. Howard requested for Council to consider his local business for trash 
services for the City of Manor.  

 
  John Harris with Waste Connections spoke before City Council in support of this item.  He 

discussed the submitted RFP proposal to the City.  He discussed the services provided by 
Waste Connections. He stated Waste Connections was the 3rd largest waste provider in Texas 
and was known for their customer service and safety programs.  Mr. Harris thanked the City 
Council for the bid opportunity.  He requested for Council to consider Waste Connections 
proposal for trash services for the City of Manor.  

 
  Mayor Jonse inquired about the location of Waste Connections.  Mr. Harris stated they had 

2 local locations in Austin and in Pflugerville.  
 
  The discussion was held regarding the City staff’s recommendation with Waste 

Connections.   
  
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Scarbrough and seconded by Council 

Member Dye the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to award the Solid 
Waste Collection and Disposal and Recycle Services for the City of Manor to Waste 
Connections; and Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a final 
contract.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 
  Council Member Weir and Mayor Pro Tem Amezcua advised they would be abstaining 

from consideration on the following item. The appropriate Conflict of Interest Affidavits have 
been filled out and filed with the City Secretary.  

 
7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Manor Lions Club H.O.T. Funds 

application of reimbursement of actual expenses meeting the State of Texas Hotel Tax 
Law Requirements Section 351.101.  

 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council approve the application of up 

to $1,500 once all qualified invoices and or receipts have been turned in for reimbursement. 
 
  Karen Walker Ratcliffe with Manor Lions Club submitted a card in support of this item; 

however, she did not wish to speak but was available to address any questions posed by City 
Council.   

  
  City Manager Bolt discussed the Manor Lions Club H.O.T. Funds application for 

reimbursement of actual expenses for Manor Lions Fest.  
  



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 8 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Hill and seconded by Council Member 

Scarbrough the Council voted four (4) For and none (0) Against to approve the 
application of $1350 of qualified invoices and or receipts that have been turned in for 
reimbursement. The motion carried unanimously.   

 
8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution to conduct a public hearing 

to discuss amending the Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2019-

15 for conducting a public hearing for the proposed amendment to the Wastewater Capital 
Improvement Plan. 

 
  City Engineer Phelan discussed the resolution to conduct a public hearing to discuss the 

amendment to the Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan.  
 
  Resolution No. 2019-15: A Resolution of The City of Manor, Texas Setting a Public 

Hearing to be Held At 7:00 P.M. on Wednesday, December 4, 2019, at Manor City Hall, 105 
E. Eggleston Street, Manor, Texas, 78653 to Consider the Amendment of the Wastewater 
Capital Improvements Plan. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Scarbrough and seconded by Council Member Hill the 

Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to approve Resolution No. 2019-15 
for conducting a public hearing for the proposed amendment to the Wastewater 
Capital Improvement Plan. The motion carried unanimously.  

 
9. Consideration, discussion and possible action to approve a change order to the 

construction contract for the Wilbarger Creek Wastewater Treatment and Collection 
System Improvements project. 

 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council approve Change Order No. 2 

to the construction contract for the Wilbarger Creek Wastewater Treatment and Collection 
System Improvements project with Excel Construction Services, LLC in the amount of 
$90,543.   

 
City Engineer Phelan discussed the change order to the construction contract for the 

Wilbarger Creek Wastewater Treatment and Collection System Improvements project.  
 
The discussion was held regarding the modifications to the new Public Works building.  
 
The discussion was held regarding other modifications for the project.  
 
The discussion was held regarding the plant design.  
 
The discussion was held regarding additional change orders for the project.   

  



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 9 
 
 
 
 
 

  MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Scarbrough and seconded by Council 
Member Weir the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to approve Change 
Order No. 2 to the construction contract for the Wilbarger Creek Wastewater 
Treatment and Collection System Improvements project with Excel Construction 
Services, LLC in the amount of $90,663.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 
10. Consideration, discussion and possible action on a resolution commencing the annexation 

of 30.8643 acres of land, more or less; being located in Travis County, Texas and adjacent 
and contiguous to the city limits; and providing for open meetings and other related 
matters. 

 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2019-

13 commencing the annexation of 30.8643 acres of land, more or less; being located in Travis 
County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits; and providing for open meetings 
and other related matters. 

 
  Candra Wolcott, 12904 Pealing Way, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition of this 

item; however, she was not present to speak to City Council.  
 
  Nicholas Lozano, 13320 Pine Needler Street, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition 

of this item; however, he did not wish to speak. 
 
  Veronica Lozano, 13320 Pine Needler Street, Manor, Texas, submitted a card in opposition 

of this item; however, she did not wish to speak. 
 
  City Manager Bolt discussed the resolution commencing the annexation property.  
 

Resolution No. 2019-13: A Resolution of The City of Manor, Texas, Commencing the 
Annexation of 30.8643 Acres of Land, More or Less; Being Located in Travis County, Texas and 
Adjacent and Contiguous to the City Limits; and Providing Open Meetings and Other Related 
Matters. 

 
  MOTION: Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 

Weir the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to approve Resolution No. 
2019-13 commencing the annexation of 30.8643 acres of land, more or less; being 
located in Travis County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits; and 
providing for open meetings and other related matters. The motion carried 
unanimously.   

 
11. Consideration, discussion and possible action on a resolution supporting the extension of 

US Highway 290 East Tollway - Phase IV into the City Limits and Eastward; and 
providing for related matters. 

 
  The City staff’s recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2019-

14 supporting the extension of US Highway 290 East Tollway - Phase IV into the City Limits 
and Eastward; and providing for related matters. 

 



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 16, 2019 
 

City of Manor  Page 10 
 
 
 
 
 

  City Manager Bolt discussed the resolution supporting the extension of US Highway 290 
East Tollway – Phase IV into the City limits.  

 
  The discussion was held regarding statistical reports of the tollway and Cap Metro transit 

from Manor to surrounding cities.   
 

 Resolution No. 2019-14: A Resolution of the City of Manor, Texas, Providing 
Support and Comments for Extending US Highway 290 East Tollway - Phase IV, Into the 
City Limits and Eastward; and Recognizing the Recent Population Increases in the Area, the 
Number of Motorists Now Utilizing US Highway 290 East and the Effects on Local Traffic 
and Citizens of the City; and Providing for Related Matters. 

 
  MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 

Dye the Council voted six (6) For and none (0) Against to approve Resolution No. 
2019-14 supporting the extension of US Highway 290 East Tollway - Phase IV into 
the City Limits and Eastward; and providing for related matters. The motion carried 
unanimously.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Regular Session of the Manor City Council Adjourned at 9:01 p.m. on Wednesday, 
October 16, 2019. 
 
 These minutes approved by the Manor City Council on the 6Th day of November 2019. 
 
 
APPROVED: 
  
__________________________________ 
Rita G. Jonse 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 

__________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  



AGENDA ITEM NO.______ 

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE 

2

November 6, 2019

Thomas Bolt, City Manager

Development Services

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing regarding the annexation of 30.86 acres, more or less, adjacent and 
contiguous to the city limits and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX. Applicant: Kimley-Horn & 
Associates Owner: Gordon Weir

This is the first public hearing regarding the annexation of the proposed RV Park property. The annexation was 
commenced at the October 16th City Council meeting.

■

■

Annexation map

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council conduct a public hearing regarding the annexation of 30.86 
acres, more or less, adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX.



US HWY 290

KIM
BR

O

F M
 97

3

OLD HWY 20

US HWY 290

Subject Property:
13119 US Hwy 290 E

P r o p o s e d  A n n e x a t i o nP r o p o s e d  A n n e x a t i o n
3 0 . 8 6  A c r e s3 0 . 8 6  A c r e s

¹
1 inch = 1,042 feet

Zone
R-1 - Single Family
R-2 - Single Family
R-3 - Multi Family
R-4 - Multi Family Special
M-1 - Manufactured Housing
M-2 - Manufactured Housing Park
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial

DB - Downtown Business District
NB - Neighborhood Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
I - Institutional
PUD - Planned Unit Development
A - Agricultural
Manor ETJ



AGENDA ITEM NO.______ 

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE 

3

November 6, 2019

Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Director

Development Services

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing regarding the rezoning of 30.86 acres of land more or less out of the 
Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 East, Manor, TX, from 
ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2). Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates Owner: Gordon Weir

This is a continuation of the public hearing began at the October 16th City Council meeting. The public hearing was 
not closed and no action was taken on the October 16th. 

■

■

Rezoning Map

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council conduct a public hearing regarding the rezoning of 30.86 
acres of land more or less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 
US Hwy 290 East, Manor, TX, from ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2).



US HWY 290

F M
 97

3

OLD HWY 20 KIM
BR

O

US HWY 290

Subject Property:
13119 US Hwy 290 E

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :
M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )

C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g  D i s t r i c t :C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g  D i s t r i c t :
E T J  ( A n n e x a t i o n  P e n d i n g )E T J  ( A n n e x a t i o n  P e n d i n g )

¹
1 inch = 1,074 feet

Zone
R-1 - Single Family
R-2 - Single Family
R-3 - Multi Family
R-4 - Multi Family Special
M-1 - Manufactured Housing
M-2 - Manufactured Housing Park
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial

DB - Downtown Business District
NB - Neighborhood Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
I - Institutional
PUD - Planned Unit Development
A - Agricultural
Manor ETJ



AGENDA ITEM NO.______ 

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE 

4

November 6, 2019

Thomas Bolt, City Manager

Development Services

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance annexing 30.86 acres, more or less, 
adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX. Applicant: 
Kimley-Horn & Associates Owner: Gordon Weir

This is the first reading of an ordinance to annex the 30.86 acre tract with the proposed RV Park. Second reading is 
currently scheduled for November 20th.

■

■

Ordinance 
Annexation map

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance annexing 30.86 
acres, more or less, adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX.



ORDINANCE NO. ______  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS ANNEXING 30.8643 
ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, THAT IS ADJACENT AND 
CONTIGUOUS TERRITORY TO THE CITY; APPROVING A SERVICES 
AGREEMENT FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to § 43.003, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code, the City of Manor, Texas (“the 
City”) is a home rule municipality authorized to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to 
the City;  

 WHEREAS, the owner of the property, as hereinafter described, made written request for 
the City to annex such property in compliance with § 43.0671, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code;  

 WHEREAS, the property is adjacent to the present city limits and contiguous with the city 
limits;  

 WHEREAS, the City Council has heard and has decided to grant the request;  

 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this 
Ordinance in accordance with § 43.0673 of the Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code;  

 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing of the territory proposed to be annexed was 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City and posted on the City’s Internet 
website not more than twenty (20) nor less than (10) days prior to the public hearings and the post 
remained on the City’s website until the date of the last hearing; and 

 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according 
to the Services Agreement entered into with the owner attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:  

 Section 1. All of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct 
and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied herein in their entirety.  

 Section 2. That the following described property (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed 
Property”) is hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Manor:  

All that certain are of land being 30.8643 acres, more or less, out of the Greenberry 
Gates Survey No. 63, Abstract No. 315, Travis County, Texas and being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.  

 Section 3. That the Services Agreement submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of 
this Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.  



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2
 

2 
 

 Section 4. That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled 
to all of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Services Agreement attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B”, and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full 
force and effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted.  

 Section 5. That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and 
amended be and hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of 
Manor.  

 Section 6. That the Annex Property shall be temporarily zoned District “A” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, until permanent zoning is established therefore.  

 Section 7. That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared severable.  

 Section 8. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code.  

 Section 9. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passes was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given required by the Opens Meeting Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov’t 
Code.  

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 6th day of November 2019.  

FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the   day of   , 2019. 

 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  

 

 

       ____________________________  
       Rita G. Jonse,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 

  

____________________________ 

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  
   

 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 3
 

3 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  

Property description: +/- 30.8643 acres  

 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 4
 

4 
 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 5
 

5 
 

EXHIBIT “B”  

Approved Services Agreement 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF MANOR 
 
 This Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into between the City of Manor, a 
Texas municipal corporation (the “City”) and Manor RV Park, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company (the “Owner”).  The City and the Owner are collectively referred to as the Parties. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to institute annexation proceedings for the tract(s) and parcel(s) 
of land described more fully hereinafter (the “Subject Property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner has requested annexation of the Subject Property and Section 
43.0672 of the Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code, requires a written agreement for the provision of services in 
the area first be entered into between the City and Owner of the Subject Property;  
  
 WHEREAS, the City and the Owner agree each will benefit from the City’s development 
restrictions and zoning requirements, as well as other municipal services provided by the City which 
are good and valuable consideration for the Owner to request annexation and for the Parties to enter 
into this Agreement for the City to provide the listed services upon annexation and in accordance with 
this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all requirements have been satisfied and the City is authorized 
by the City Charter and Ch. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the Subject Property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Property Description. The legal description of the Subject Property is as set forth in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
 
Section 2.  Services. The following services will be provided for the Subject Property on the effective 
date of annexation of the Subject Property: 
 

(a) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the Owner and this 
Agreement, the following services shall be provided immediately from the effective 
date of the annexation: 

 
 (1) Police protection as follows: 

 
 Routine patrols of accessible areas, radio response to calls for police service 

and all other police services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 

 (2) Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 6
 

6 
 

 
 Fire protection by agreement between the City and the ESD’s present 

personnel and equipment of the ESD fire fighting force and the volunteer fire 
fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present contract personnel and 
equipment of the ESD. 

 
 (3) Solid waste collection services as follows:  

 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the 

City. 
 

 (4) Animal control as follows: 
 

 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities, or by contract with a 
third party, as provided within the City. 

 
(5) Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
(6) Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
(7) Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
(8) Land use regulation as follows:   

 
On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 
include the Subject Property.  It is the City’s intent to zone the subject property at the Owner’s 
request in a manner that is not inconsistent with such uses, as provided in the Development 
Agreement.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider the 
applicant’s request to process a zoning application and zone the Subject Property for such use 
and development following final annexation of the Subject Property. The Owner shall apply 
for and obtain zoning for the Subject Property prior to proceeding with the platting of the 
Subject Property as proposed in the concept plan filed on May 10, 2019. The Owner may not 
obtain approval of preliminary plans until such time as the zoning for the proposed use(s) has 
been obtained and the Owner agrees to develop in compliance with the City ordinances, rules 
and regulations within the city limits as set forth in more detail in the Development 
Agreement, and zoning approved by the City.  

 
(b) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the Subject 

Property, the plans and schedule for the development of the Subject Property, the 
following municipal services will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels 
of service as provided in this Agreement:  

 
 (1) Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 

 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 7
 

7 
 

(A) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the 
State of Texas. 
 

(B) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the 
provision of water service, water service will be provided to the 
Subject Property, or applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding 
a water CCN for the Subject Property, or portions thereof as 
applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction 
the Subject Property, or portions thereof as applicable, is located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the 
City in effect from time to time for the extension of water service. The 
Subject Property Owner shall construct the internal water lines and be 
responsible for the costs of line extension and construction of such 
facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject property as 
required in City ordinances, if applicable.  Upon acceptance of the 
water lines within the Subject Property and any off-site improvements, 
water service will be provided by the City utility department on the 
same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, 
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies, if agreed to by the CCN 
holder.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City, as permitted by the CCN holder.  The 
ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service, except as 
provided by the Development Agreement. 

 
 (2) Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater facilities as follows: 

 
(A) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 

 
(B) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the 

provision of wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided 
to the Subject Property, or applicable portions thereof, by the utility 
holding a wastewater CCN for the Subject Property, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the Subject Property, or portions thereof as 
applicable, is located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater 
utility system, the Subject Property Owner shall construct the internal 
wastewater lines and be responsible for the costs of line extension. The 
number of LUEs exceeds the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and the 
planned ultimate buildout of the Subject Property, as a result the City 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 8
 

8 
 

will need to oversize and expand the Bell Farms lift station under an 
accelerated schedule.  The City shall be responsible for the oversize 
and expansion of the Bell Farms lift station and is responsible for the 
cost of any upgrades to its wastewater treatment plant.  Upon 
acceptance of the wastewater lines within the Subject Property and any 
off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the 
City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and 
policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system 
will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its 
usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be 
installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as 
with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in 
effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service, except as provided by the Development 
Agreement. 

 
 (3) Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 

 
(A) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the 

Subject Property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and 
finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of the existing streets 
and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
 (i) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous 

potholes, measures necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
(ii) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 

 
(B)   The outer boundaries of the Subject Property abut existing roadways.  

The Owner agrees that no improvements are required by the City on 
such roadways to service the Subject Property.      

 
(c)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall 

be initiated by the City after the effective date of the annexation: oversizing of the Bell Farms lift 
station.  Upon development of the Subject Property, the Owner will be responsible for the 
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area. 
 
Section 3. Conflicts.  In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Development 
Agreement for the Subject Property, the terms and provisions of the Development Agreement shall 
govern and control. 
 
Section 4.  Term.  The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) is ten (10) years from the Effective 
Date. 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 9
 

9 
 

Section 5.  Vested Rights Claims.  This Agreement is not a permit for the purposes of Chapter 
245, Texas Local Government Code.   
 
Section 6.  Authorization.  All parties and officers signing this Agreement warrant to be duly 
authorized to execute this Agreement. 
 
Section 7.  Covenant Running with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the Subject 
Property, and this Agreement shall be recorded in the Official Public Records of Travis County, 
Texas.  The Owner and the City acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is binding upon the 
City and the Owner and their respective successors, executors, heirs, and assigns, as applicable, 
for the term of this Agreement.   

 
Section 8.  Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent and 
final jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the remainder of the 
Agreement shall be deemed to be valid and enforceable as if the invalid portion had not been 
included. 
 
Section 9.  Amendment and Modifications.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only 
in a written instrument that is executed by both the City and the Owner after it has been authorized 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 10.  Gender, Number and Headings.  Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall 
be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held 
to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.  The headings and section numbers are 
for convenience only and shall not be considered in interpreting or construing this Agreement. 
 
Section 11.  Governmental Immunity; Defenses.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to 
waive, modify, or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to either the City or Owner, 
including governmental immunity, nor to create any legal rights or claims on behalf of any third 
party.  
 
Section 12.  Enforcement; Waiver.  This Agreement may be enforced by Owner or the City by 
any proceeding at law or in equity.  Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement thereafter.    
 
Section 13.  Effect of Future Laws.  No subsequent change in the law regarding annexation shall 
affect the enforceability of this Agreement.    
 
Section 14.  Venue and Applicable Law.  Venue for this Agreement shall be in Travis County, 
Texas.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. 
 
Section 15.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be separately executed in individual 
counterparts and, upon execution, shall constitute one and same instrument. 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 10
 

10 
 

Section 16.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of the date of 
approval of this Agreement by the City Council, from and after its execution by the parties.   
 
Section  17.  Sections to Survive Termination.  This Agreement shall survive its termination to 
the extent necessary for the implementation of the provisions related to water service to the Subject 
Property by the City.  
 

[signature pages follow] 
  



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 11
 

11 
 

 
Entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2019. 
 

CITY: 
 
THE CITY OF MANOR, 
a Texas municipal corporation  

 
 
 
              
       Rita G. Jonse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
  § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT is acknowledged before me on this ___ day of ______, 2019, by Rita G. 
Jonse, as Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas and attested to by Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
of the City of Manor, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
 
 

(SEAL)    ___________________________________ 
       Notary Public – State of Texas 
  



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 12
 

12 
 

 
OWNER: 
 
MANOR RV PARK, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company  
 
By: Laureate Capital Management, LLC, 

its Managing Member 
 
 
       By:        
             Jeremy Boynton, Managing Member 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _______ day of __________________, 
2019, by Jeremy Boynton, Managing Member of Laureate Capital Management, LLC, the 
Managing Member of Manor RV Park, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of said 
company. 
  
 
 

(SEAL)     ___________________________________ 
        Notary Public – State of Texas 
 
 
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
 
City of Manor 
Attn: City Secretary 
105 East Eggleston Street 
Manor, TX 78653 
 
 



US HWY 290

KIM
BR

O

F M
 97

3

OLD HWY 20

US HWY 290

Subject Property:
13119 US Hwy 290 E

P r o p o s e d  A n n e x a t i o nP r o p o s e d  A n n e x a t i o n
3 0 . 8 6  A c r e s3 0 . 8 6  A c r e s

¹
1 inch = 1,042 feet

Zone
R-1 - Single Family
R-2 - Single Family
R-3 - Multi Family
R-4 - Multi Family Special
M-1 - Manufactured Housing
M-2 - Manufactured Housing Park
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial

DB - Downtown Business District
NB - Neighborhood Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
I - Institutional
PUD - Planned Unit Development
A - Agricultural
Manor ETJ



AGENDA ITEM NO.______ 

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE 

5

November 6, 2019

Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Director

Development Services

First Reading: Consideration, discussion and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 30.86 acres of land more or 
less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 US Hwy 290 East, 
Manor, TX, from ETJ/Interim Agricultural to Medium Commercial (C-2). Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: Gordon Weir

This item was postponed from October 16th. Staff's recommendation was to approve C-2 Medium Commercial but 
due to high levels of public interest and opposition staff is recommending C-1 Light Commercial. The Council can 
approve any less intense zoning district than the one requested; C-1 Light Commercial is a less intense than C-2 
Medium Commercial. The Planning Commission voted 5-0 to DENY the C-2 zoning.

■

■

Ordinance 
Letter of Intent 
Notice Map 
Notice Letter 
Mailing Labels

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance rezoning 30.86 
acres of land more or less out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 Abstract No. 315, and being located at 13119 
US Hwy 290 East, Manor, TX, from  Agricultural (A) to Light Commercial (C-1).

■



 ORDINANCE NO. ____        
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
AGRICULTRUAL (A) TO LIGHT COMMERCIAL (C-1); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested that 
the Property be rezoned;  

 Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet 
of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   Whereas, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by 
rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 Section 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”), from the 
current zoning district Agricultural (A) to zoning district Light Commercial (C-1).  The Property is 
accordingly hereby rezoned to Light Commercial (C-1). 

 Section 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Texas Gov't. Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 6th day of November 2019. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the 20th day of November 
2019. 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
       ____________________________  
       Rita G. Jonse,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Property Address: 
13119 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX 78653 

 
Property Legal Description: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P:\00358\Metes & Bounds & Certifications\00835_mb.docx Page 1  of 
 

 

Exhibit “A” – Legal Description 
BEING A DESCRIPTION OF A TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 30.8643 
ACRES (1,344,450 SQUARE FEET) OUT OF THE GREENBERRY GATES 
SURVEY NO. 63, ABSTRACT NO. 315, IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING 
ALL OF A CALLED 31.02 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO ELSIE FRANCES 
WIER IN DOCUMENT #1999148737 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS 
OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.T.C.T.), SAVE AND EXCEPT A 1.5 
CALLED ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO GREYSTONE HOLDINGS, LLC, IN 
DOCUMENT #2005016761 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), SAID 30.8643 ACRES BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
PO Box 90876 

Austin, TX 78709 
512.554.3371 

jward@4wardls.com 
www.4wardls.com 

 

BEGINNING, at a 1/2-inch iron rod with "4Ward Boundary" cap set in the south right-of-way line of US 
Highway 290 (240’ right-of-way), and being the northeast corner of said Greystone tract, and being the 
northwest corner of the remainder of said Wier tract, for the northwest corner and POINT OF BEGINNING 
hereof, from which a 3/8-inch iron rod found bears, S11°00’39”W, a distance of 1.00 feet, and also from 
which, a 1/2-inch iron pipe found in the south right-of-way line of said US 290, and being the northeast corner 
of a called 1.002 acre tract partially conveyed to Daniel Perez in Document #2012110051 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and 
to Celia Enriquez-Felipe in Document #2015030029 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and being the northwest corner of said 
Greystone tract, and being the northwest corner of said Wier tract bears, S85°56’14”W, a distance of 155.12 
feet; 

 
THENCE, with the south right-of-way line of said US 290 and the north line of said Wier tract, the following 
three (3) courses and distances: 

 
1) N85°56’14”E, a distance of 778.45 feet to a disturbed TxDot Type 1 concrete monument found 

for the northeast corner hereof, and 
2) S03°55’51”E, a distance of 158.46 feet to a leaning TxDot Type 1 concrete monument found for 

an angle point hereof, said point being in the called west line of an abandoned County Road (no 
dedication/vacation information found), and 

3) S61°43’23”E, a distance of 30.06 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found for an angle point hereof, said 
point being in the called centerline of said abandoned County Road, and being a corner in the 
east line of said Wier tract; 

 
THENCE, with the called centerline of said abandoned County Road and the east line of said Wier tract, 
S27°05’58”W, a distance of 1,791.29 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with "4Ward Boundary" cap set for an angle 
point hereof, said point being at the intersection of the west line of a called 94.339 acre tract conveyed to 
Ginsel Family Ltd., in Document #2006248015 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), said tract being described by metes and 
bounds in Document #2004055639 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and in Volume 3120, Page 698 of the Deed Records of 
Travis County, Texas (D.R.T.C.T.), with the called centerline of said abandoned County Road and the east line 
of said Wier tract; 

 
THENCE, with the west line of said Ginsel tract, in conflict with the called centerline of said abandoned 
County Road and the east line of said Wier tract, S27°58’47”W, a distance of 334.74 feet to a 1/2-inch iron  
rod with "4Ward Boundary" cap set for the southeast corner hereof, said point being at the intersection of the 
north line of Lot 22, Block I of Bell Farms, Phase Two-A, recorded in Document #200700061 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), 
with the west line of said Ginsel tract, from which a 1/2-inch iron rod with illegible cap found for the 
southwest corner of said Ginsel tract, and being the northwest corner of Lot 83, Block C of Final Plat of 
Carriage Hills Section Three, recorded in Document #201000127 (O.P.R.T.C.T.) bears, S27°58’47”W, a 
distance of 166.08 feet, and also from which, a calculated point for the northeast corner of said Lot 22, and 
being the southeast corner of said Wier tract bears, S73°23’16”E, a distance of 5.23 feet; 

 
THENCE, with the common line of said Bell Farms, Phase Two-A, and said Wier tract, N73°23’16”W, 
passing at a distance of 173.07 feet, a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the northeast terminus of Carillon Way (60’ 

mailto:jward@4wardls.com
http://www.4wardls.com/


P:\00358\Metes & Bounds & Certifications\00835_mb.docx Page 2  of 
 

 

right-of-way), and being the northwest corner of said Lot 22, and continuing for a total distance of 374.66 feet 
to a 1/2-inch iron rod found for the southwest corner hereof, said point being at the southeast corner of a called 
3.20 acre tract conveyed to Faustino Canamero Cardero in Document #2018099283 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and 
being in the north line of Lot 50, Block “D” of said Bell Farms, Phase Two-A, and being the southwest corner 
of said Wier tract; 

 
THENCE, in part with the east line of said Cardero tract, in part with the east line of a called 1.0004 acre tract 
conveyed to Timothy W. Walker, Sr., in Document #2019011268 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a 
called 1.00 acre tract conveyed to Sammie Hutchinson in Volume 11789, Page 292 of the Real Property 
Records of Travis County, Texas (R.P.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a called 1.0 acre tract conveyed to 
Aguster Powell in Volume 5086, Page 1826 (D.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a called 1.0 acre tract 
conveyed to Jesse and Barbara Robertson in Volume 8731, Page 506 (R.P.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line 
of a called 1.0 acre tract conveyed to Pablo R. and Ana M. Mijares in Document #2014174956 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), 
in part with the east line of a called 0.25 acre tract conveyed to Anselma and San Juana Castro in Volume 
13218, Page 4385 (R.P.R.T.C.T.), said tract described further in Document #2003291901 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), in 
part with the east line of a called 0.25 acre tract conveyed to Lupe Hernandez in Document #2003291901 
(O.P.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a called 0.50 acre tract conveyed to Jose Guadalupe and Soni 
Hernandez in Document #2002181992 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), said tract described further in Document #2003291901 
(O.P.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a called 1.00 acre tract conveyed to Frank D. Muniz in Volume 
12117, Page 263 (R.P.R.T.C.T.), said tract described in Volume 2958, Page 888 (D.R.T.C.T.) and in Volume 
4998, Page 777 (D.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a called 0.50 acre tract conveyed to Amy G. and 
Joseph Carlos Deleon in Document #2008194463 (O.P.R.T.C.T.), in part with the east line of a called 1.0 acre 
tract conveyed to Hilaria Reyes in Volume 11799, Page 26 (R.P.R.T.C.T.), and with the west line of said Wier 
tract, N10°53’27”E, a distance of 1,486.93 feet to a calculated point for an exterior ell-corner hereof, said 
point being at the common corner of said Greystone tract, said Perez tract and said Reyes tract, from which a 
1/2-inch iron pipe found in the south right-of-way line of said US 290, and being the common north corner of 
said Greystone tract and said Perez tract, and being the northwest corner of said Wier tract bears, 
N10°53’27”E, a distance of 437.05 feet; 

 
THENCE, over and across said Wier tract, with the south and east lines of the Greystone tract, the following 
two (2) courses and distances: 

 
1) N85°57’43”E, a distance of 154.15 feet to a 1-inch iron pipe found for an interior ell-corner 

hereof, and 
2) N11°00’39”E, passing at a distance of 436.36 feet, a 3/8-inch iron rod found, and continuing for 

a total distance of 437.36 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 30.8643 Acres 
(1,344,450 Square Feet) more or less. 

 
NOTE: 

All bearings are based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, Grid North, Central Zone (4203); all 
distances were adjusted to surface using a combined scale factor of 1.000079893396. See attached sketch 
(reference drawing: 00835.dwg) 

 
 
 
 7/31/2019  
Steven M. Duarte, RPLS #5940 
4Ward Land Surveying, LLC 



 

kimley-horn.com 2600 Via Fortuna, Terrace 1, Suite 300, Austin, TX 78746 512 646 2237 

 

August 2, 2019 

City of Manor 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
Manor, TX 78653 
 

RE: Letter of Intent for Zoning and Annexation Subject to a Development Agreement 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Please accept this Letter of Intent for the annexation and zoning of the tract described as 31.02 Acres 
out of the Greenbury Gates Survey 63, Patent No. 194, Volume 4, Abstract No. 315. The tract is 
locally known as 13119 East Highway 290, Manor, TX 78653. The subject tract is currently located 
within the City of Manor’s ETJ and will be voluntarily annexed to connect to City of Manor wastewater 
services. The tract is being proposed to be used as an RV park (approx. 94% site usage) with 2 
commercial lots (approx. 6% site usage) located along the US 290 frontage. As the tract is located 
within the ETJ, there is currently no zoning on the site. With the annexation of the property, we 
request M-2 zoning. This voluntary request for zoning and annexation is conditioned on the City 
Council approval of a mutually agreeable Development Agreement signed by all parties. 

Please contact me at 512-646-2239 if additional information is required. 
 
Sincerely, 

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

Andrew S. Evans, P.E. 
Project Manager 



US HWY 290

F M
 97

3

OLD HWY 20 KIM
BR

O

US HWY 290

Subject Property:
13119 US Hwy 290 E

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :
M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )

C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g  D i s t r i c t :C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g  D i s t r i c t :
E T J  ( A n n e x a t i o n  P e n d i n g )E T J  ( A n n e x a t i o n  P e n d i n g )

¹
1 inch = 1,074 feet

Zone
R-1 - Single Family
R-2 - Single Family
R-3 - Multi Family
R-4 - Multi Family Special
M-1 - Manufactured Housing
M-2 - Manufactured Housing Park
C-1 - Light Commercial
C-2 - Medium Commercial

DB - Downtown Business District
NB - Neighborhood Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy Industrial
I - Institutional
PUD - Planned Unit Development
A - Agricultural
Manor ETJ





Gordon Wier 
13119 US Hwy 290 E 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Sammie Hutchinson 
12801 Cedar St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Aguster Powell 
709 Delmar Ave 
Austin, TX 78752 

Lucille Spears 
106 Billingsley Hts 

Cedar Creek, TX 78612 
 

Pablo Mijares 
17005 John Michael Dr 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Anselma Castro 
12901 Cedar St 

Manor, TX 78653 

Susie Spears 
5337 Westminster Dr 

Austin, TX 78723 
 

Frank Muniz 
PO Box 238 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Hilaria Reyes 
PO Box 169 

Manor, TX 78653 

Guadalupe Hernandez 
12907 Cedar St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Fernando Olague 
12921 US 290 E 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Daniel Perez 
12200 Johnson Rd 
Manor, TX 78653 

Balbino Serrato 
12908 Cedar St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Alberto Fernandez 
6311 Capriola Dr 
Austin, TX 78745 

 
Greystone Holdings, LLC 
10016 37th Ave, Apt 1-B 

Corona, NY 11368 

Jaimes Cruz 
12826 Cedar St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Dionne Upshur 
13020 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Steven Albarracin 

13016 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

Timothy Walker Sr. 
3006 Royster Ave 

Del Valle, TX 78617 
 

Juan Vazquez 
13012 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Jose Sifuentes 

13008 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

Faustino Cardero 
12932 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Lorena Gomez 

13004 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Rene Arellano 

13000 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

Christian Munn 
12956 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Linda Williams 

12952 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Luna Renato 

12929 Snow Lane 
Manor, TX 78653 

Michelle Schreiber 
12933 Snow Lane 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Marietta Russell 

13009 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Sheryl Mcglory 

13013 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 



Geoffrey Beverly 
13017 Wedding Dr 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Alfredo Uriegas 

12921 Carillon Way 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Johnny Castro 

12925 Carillon Way 
Manor, TX 78653 

Brandon Parry 
12929 Carillon Way 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Joe Aros 
12933 Carillon Way 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Justin Powell 
12937 Carillon Way 

Manor, TX 78653 

Kelly Baker 
PO Box 10933 

Austin, TX 78766 
 

David Gonzales-Valencia 
13005 Carillon Way 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Ginsel Family LTD 
7111 Creighton Ln 
Austin, TX 78723 

IBC Partners LTD 
9900 US 290 E 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Amy Deleon 
12915 Cedar St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Jorge Morales 
13216 Pine Needle St 

Manor, TX 78653 

Cain Espinosa 
13212 Pine Needle St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Moise Reed 
13208 Pine Needle St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Rita Lopez 
13204 Pine Needle St 

Manor, TX 78653 

Carriage Hills Homeowner Assoc. 
PO Box 700128 

Dallas, TX 75370 
 

Rita Reyes 
13201 Pine Needle St 

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Mamdou Diallo 
13205 Pine Needle St 

Manor, TX 78653 

     

     

     

     



 AGENDA ITEM NO.______

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 
 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:       

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:  
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE  

6

November 6, 2019

Thomas Bolt, City Manager

Administration 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance approving a Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone Number One, City of Manor Final Project and Finance Plan. 

 
On December 5, 2018 the City adopted Ordinance No. 536 creating the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
Number One, City of Manor Texas ("TIRZ No. 1") and approved the preliminary project and finance plan. 
The property covered by TIRZ No. 1 is approximately 599 acres being developed as a residential master 
planned community in accordance with the Development Agreement (Manor Heights). A final Project and 
Finance Plan for TIRZ No. 1 is ready for approval. The Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One, 
City of Manor Texas, Final Project and Finance Plan has been reviewed by the TIRZ Board and is provided 
to the City Council for consideration. 

Ordinance No. 558 
Exhibit A - Project and Finance Plan 
TIRZ Letter - FORESTAR

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 558 approving a Tax 
Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Manor Final Project and Finance Plan. 



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 558 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MANOR, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE 
NUMBER ONE, CITY OF MANOR FINAL PROJECT AND FINANCE 
PLAN; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, on December 5, 2018, the City of Manor, Texas (the “City”) City Council 

(the “City Council”), by the adoption of Ordinance No. 536, created Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone Number One, City of Manor (the “Zone”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 311.011(d), Texas Tax Code, provides that the City Council must 

approve a project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan after its adoption by the board of the 
Zone (the “Board”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2019, the Board approved the final Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Manor Texas Project and Finance Plan (the “Project and 
Finance Plan”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 311.011(d), Texas Tax Code, the City Council finds that 

the Project and Finance Plan is feasible. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MANOR, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. RECITALS.  That the recitals, findings, and determinations contained in the 
preamble to this Ordinance are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth in this 
Section and are hereby found and declared to be true and correct legislative findings and are adopted 
as part of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

 
SECTION 2. PROJECT AND FINANCE PLAN APPROVAL.  That the City Council does 
hereby approve the final Project and Finance Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY. That if any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Ordinance, or the application of same to any person or set of circumstances, is for 
any reason held to be invalid, the validity of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance or their 
application to other persons or sets of circumstances shall not be affected thereby, it being the 
intent of the City Council in adopting this Ordinance that no provision of this Ordinance shall 
become inoperative because of the invalidity of another provision; and, therefore, all provisions of 
this Ordinance are declared severable for that purpose. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 558 Page 2
 

2 
 

SECTION 4.  OPEN MEETINGS. It is hereby found, determined, and declared that sufficient 
written notice of the date, hour, place and subject of the meeting of the City Council at which this 
Ordinance was adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the 
general public at the City Hall of the City for the time required by law preceding its meeting, as 
required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as 
amended, and that this meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during 
which this Ordinance and the subject matter hereof has been discussed, considered and formally 
acted upon.  The City Council further ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and the 
contents and posting thereof. 

 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of Manor, Texas, at a regular meeting 
on the 6th day of November 2019, at which a quorum was present, and for which due notice was 
given pursuant to Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 
 
             

Rita G. Jonse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 558 Page 3
 

3 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Final Project and Finance Plan for  
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Manor 

[attached] 
 



 

  

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 1 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

PROJECT AND FINANCE PLAN 
NOVEMEBER 6, 2019 

 

      



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents .................................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 1: Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Section 2: Description and Maps.............................................................................................................. 3 

Section 3: Proposed Changes to Ordinances, Plans, Codes, Rules and Regulations ................................... 4 

Section 4: Relocation of Displaced Persons .............................................................................................. 4 

Section 5: Estimated Non-Project Costs ................................................................................................... 4 

Section 6: Proposed Public Improvements ............................................................................................... 4 

Section 7: Estimated Project Costs ........................................................................................................... 5 

Section 8: Economic Feasibility ................................................................................................................ 5 

Section 9: Estimated Bonded Indebtedness ............................................................................................. 6 

Section 10: Appraised Value .................................................................................................................... 6 

Section 11: Method of Financing ............................................................................................................. 7 

Section 12: Duration of the Zone, Termination ........................................................................................ 7 

Section 13: TIRZ True Up.......................................................................................................................... 8 

List of Appendicies .................................................................................................................................. 9 

Appendix A – Legal Description.............................................................................................................. 10 

Appendix B – Map ................................................................................................................................. 11 

Appendix C – List of Non-Project Costs .................................................................................................. 12 

Appendix D – List of Project Costs .......................................................................................................... 13 

Appendix E – Estimated Timeline of Incurred Costs ............................................................................... 14 

Appendix F – Feasibility Study ............................................................................................................... 15 

Appendix G – True Up – Annual Percentage Calculation ........................................................................ 16 

Appendix H – True Up – Feasibility Study (1 of 2) ................................................................................... 17 

Appendix H – True Up – Feasibility Study (2 of 2) ................................................................................... 18 

Appendix I – Development Agreement .................................................................................................. 19 

 

 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 2 

 

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Authority and Purpose 

The City of Manor, a Texas Home-Rule municipality (the “City”) has the authority under Chapter 311, Texas 
Tax Code, as amended (the “Act”) to designate a contiguous or noncontiguous geographic area within the 
corporate limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”) of the City as a tax increment reinvestment zone to 
promote development or redevelopment of the area if the governing body of the City (the “City Council”) 
determines that development or redevelopment would not occur solely through private investment in 
the reasonably foreseeable future, that the zone is feasible, and that creation of the zone is in the best 
interest of the City and the property in the zone.  The purpose of the zone is to facilitate such development 
or redevelopment by financing the costs of public works, public improvements, programs, and other 
projects benefiting the zone, plus other costs incidental to those expenditures, all of which costs are 
authorized by the Act. 

1.2 Eligibility Requirements 

An area is eligible under the Act to be designated as a tax increment reinvestment zone if it is 
predominantly open or undeveloped and, because of obsolete platting, deterioration of structure or site 
improvements, or other factors, substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of the City.  The City 
cannot, however, designate a zone if more than thirty percent (30%) of the property in the proposed zone, 
excluding property that is publicly owned, is “used for residential purposes” (defined by the Act as follows: 
“…property is used for residential purposes if it is occupied by a house having fewer than five living units 
…”) or if the total appraised value of taxable real property in the proposed zone and in existing 
reinvestment zones exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the total appraised value of taxable real property in the 
City and in industrial districts created by the City. 

1.3 Final Zone 

The City Council created a tax increment reinvestment zone known as “Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
Number One, City of Manor, Texas” (the “Zone”) that includes approximately 599 acres of land (the 
“Property”) as described by metes and bounds in Appendix A and owned by Forestar (USA) Real Estate 
Group, Inc. a Delaware Corporation, its authorized and approved successors and assigns, Alma Juanita 
Champion Meier, William Clark Meier, and Carolyn Juanita Meier Fauber (collectively, the “Owner”).  The 
Property is currently zoned PUD and R-2.  The Property is undeveloped, and due to its size, location, and 
physical characteristics, development will not occur solely through private investment in the foreseeable 
future.  The Property substantially impairs and arrests the sound growth of the City because it is 
predominately open and undeveloped due to factors such as the lack of public infrastructure and the need 
for economic incentive to attract development to the Zone for the purpose of providing long-term 
economic benefits including, but not limited to, increased real property tax base for all taxing units in the 
Zone.  If the public improvements, and other projects are financed as contemplated by this Final Plan 
(hereinafter defined), the City envisions that the Property will be developed to take full advantage of the 
opportunity to bring to the City and Travis County a master planned development. 

 

 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 3 

 

1.4 Preliminary Plan and Hearing 

Before the City adopted the ordinance designating the Zone, the City Council prepared a preliminary 
reinvestment zone finance plan in accordance with the Act and held a public hearing on the creation of 
the Zone and its benefits to the City and to the Property, at which public hearing interested persons were 
given the opportunity to speak for and against the creation of the Zone, the boundaries of the Zone and 
the concept of tax increment financing, and at which hearing the Owner of the Property was given a 
reasonable opportunity to protest the inclusion of the Property in the Zone. The reinvestment zone 
preliminary finance plan described, in general terms, the public improvements that will be undertaken 
and financed by the Zone. 

1.5 Creation of the Zone 

Upon the closing of the above referenced public hearing, the City Council adopted an ordinance in 
accordance with the Act creating the Zone (1) upon findings by the City Council that development or 
redevelopment of the Property would not occur solely through private investment in the reasonably 
foreseeable future, (2) that the Zone is feasible, and (3) that improvements in the Zone will significantly 
enhance the value of all the taxable real property in the Zone and will be of general benefit to the City.  
Among other provisions required by the Act, the ordinance creating the Zone appointed a Board of 
Directors for the Zone (the “Board”). 

1.6 Board Recommendations 

After the creation of the Zone, the Board prepared and adopted, and recommended to the City Council 
this Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Manor, Texas Final Project and Finance Plan 
(the “Final Plan”), and an agreement between Owner, Board, and the City (the “TIRZ Agreement”).  
Pursuant to the TIRZ Agreement when adopted, and that certain Development Agreement (as amended, 
the “Development Agreement”) dated November 7, 2018, the City will contribute a portion of its ad 
valorem tax increment attributable to new development in the Zone (the “Tax Increment”) into a Tax 
Increment Fund created by the City and segregated from all other funds of the City (the “TIRZ Fund”) to 
pay to Owner or its assigns the costs of public improvements and other projects benefitting the Zone. 

1.7 Council Action 

The City Council will take into consideration the recommendations of the Board and will consider approval 
of this Final Plan and the TIRZ Agreement. If the TIRZ Agreement is approved, the City Council will 
authorize and direct its execution. 

 

SECTION 2: DESCRIPTION AND MAPS 

2.1 Existing Uses and Conditions 

The Property is currently located in Travis County and within the corporate limits of the City and is zoned 
PUD and R-2.  The Property is undeveloped, and there is no public infrastructure to support development.  
Development will require extensive public infrastructure that: (1) the City cannot provide, and (2) will not 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 4 

 

be provided solely through private investment in the foreseeable future.  A map of the Property and the 
Zone is shown on Appendix B. 

2.2 Proposed Uses 

The Proposed use of the Property is a residential master planned community pursuant to the 
Development Agreement, attached as Appendix I. 

 

SECTION 3: PROPOSED CHANGES TO ORDINANCES, PLANS, CODES, RULES AND 
REGULATIONS 

The Property is wholly located in the corporate limits of the City and is subject to the City’s zoning 
regulations.  The City has exclusive jurisdiction over the subdivision and platting of the Property and the 
design, construction, installation, and inspection of water, sewer, drainage, roadway, and other public 
infrastructure. 

 

SECTION 4: RELOCATION OF DISPLACED PERSONS 

4.1 No Relocation Necessary 

No persons will be displaced and in need of relocation due to the creation of the Zone or implementation 
of this Final Plan. 

 

SECTION 5: ESTIMATED NON-PROJECT COSTS 

5.1 List of Non-Project Costs 

Non-project costs are private funds that will be spent to develop in the Zone but will not be financed by 
the Zone.  The list of non-project costs is shown on Appendix C.  The total non-project costs are estimated 
to be approximately $4,938,570. 

 

SECTION 6: PROPOSED PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

6.1 Categories of Public Improvements 

The proposed public improvements to be financed by the Zone include offsite water improvements, MAD 
4 roadway/collector roadway, Phase 2 wastewater treatment plant and enhanced landscaping (the 
“Public Improvements”).  All Public Improvements shall be designated and constructed in accordance with 
all applicable City standards and shall otherwise be inspected, approved, and accepted by the City.  



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 5 

 

 

6.2 Locations of Public Improvements 

The estimated locations of the proposed Public Improvements are described in the Development 
Agreement.  These locations may be revised, with the approval of the City Administrator or his/her 
designee, from time to time without amending this Final Plan. 

 

SECTION 7: ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS 

7.1 Project Costs 

The total costs of projects in the Zone include the costs of the Public Improvements and the costs of 
administering the Zone (the “Project Costs”), and are estimated to be $25,668,191, as shown on Appendix 
D. 

7.2 Estimated Costs of Public Improvements 

The estimated costs of the Public Improvements (the “Public Improvements Costs”) within the Zone are 
$25,546,704 as shown on Appendix D. 

7.3 Estimated Administrative Costs 

The estimated costs for administration of the Zone shall be the actual, direct costs paid or incurred by or 
on behalf of the city to administer the Zone (the “Administrative Costs”).  The Administrative Costs include 
the costs of professional services, including those for planning, engineering, and legal services paid by or 
on behalf of the City.  The Administrative Costs also include organizational costs, the costs of publicizing 
the creation of the Zone, and the cost of implementing the project plan for the Zone paid by or on behalf 
of the City that are directly related to the administration of the Zone.  The Administrative Costs shall be 
paid each year from the TIRZ Fund before any other Project Costs are paid.  The Administrative Costs are 
estimated to be $5,000 per year beginning 2020 and escalating at two percent (2%) thereafter. 

7.4 Estimated Timeline of Incurred Costs 

The Administrative Costs will be incurred annually beginning at the time the Zone creates a new increment 
of real property tax revenue and through the duration of the Zone.  It is estimated the Project Costs will 
be incurred during calendar years 2020 through 2022, as shown on Appendix E. 

 

SECTION 8: ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY 

8.1 Feasibility Study 

For purposes of this Final Plan, economic feasibility has been evaluated over the term of the Zone, as 
shown on Appendix F.  This evaluation focuses on only direct financial benefits (i.e. ad valorem tax 
revenues from the development of Public Improvements in the Zone).  Based on the Feasibility Study, 
during the term of the Zone, new development (which would not have occurred but for the Zone) will 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 6 

 

generate approximately $82,540,386 in total new City real property tax revenue.  The City, as a participant, 
will benefit from the new development within the Zone and will retain approximately $63,250,079 in net 
additional real property tax revenue.  The remaining additional revenue will be deposited in the TIRZ Fund 
to pay Project Costs.  

The Feasibility Study shows a portion of the new real property tax revenue generated by the Zone will be 
retained by the City.  The remainder of the new real property tax revenue generated within the Zone will 
be available to pay Project Costs, up to the Maximum Contribution which is $19,168,820 (the “Maximum 
Contribution”), until the term expires or is otherwise terminated.  All taxing revenues generated for other 
taxing entities by the development of Public Improvements within the Zone will be retained one hundred 
percent (100%) by the other taxing entities.  Upon expiration or termination of the Zone, one hundred 
percent (100%) of all tax revenue generated within the Zone will be retained by the respective taxing 
entities.  Based on the foregoing, the feasibility of the Zone has been demonstrated. 

 

SECTION 9: ESTIMATED BONDED INDEBTEDNESS 

9.1 No Estimated Bonded Indebtedness 

No bonded indebtedness issued by the City pursuant to the Act is contemplated. 

 

SECTION 10: APPRAISED VALUE 

10.1 Current Appraised Value 

The current total appraised value of taxable real property in the Zone is $2,815,559, which represents the 
Tax Increment Base, (the “Tax Increment Base”) of the Property and is determined by the Travis Central 
Appraisal District in accordance with Section 311.012(c) of the Act.  

10.2 Estimated Captured Appraised Value 

The amount of the City’s tax increment for a year during the term of the Zone is the amount of property 
taxes levied and collected by the City for that year on the captured appraised value of the Property less 
the Tax Increment Base of the Property, (the “Captured Appraised Value”).  The Tax Increment Base of 
the Property is the total taxable value of the Property for the year in which the Zone was designated, as 
stated in Section 10.1.  It is estimated that upon expiration of the term of the Zone, the total Captured 
Appraised Value of taxable real property in the Zone will be $709,585,314, as shown on Appendix F.  At 
the estimated time (year 2022) the Public Improvements are completed; the Captured Appraised Value 
will be $82,252,333 as shown on Appendix F.  The actual Captured Appraised Value, as certified by the 
Travis Central Appraisal District will, for each year, will be used to calculate annual payment by the City 
into the TIRZ Fund pursuant to this Final Plan.  

 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 7 

 

SECTION 11: METHOD OF FINANCING 

Pursuant to the Development Agreement attached as Appendix I, the Owner has paid, and will in the 
future pay, those Project Costs attributable to the Public Improvements and will construct or cause to be 
constructed the Public Improvements.  This Final Plan, the Development Agreement, and the TIRZ 
Agreement, when adopted, shall obligate the City to pay from the TIRZ Fund to the Owner or its assigns 
all actual Project Costs paid by the Owner or its assigns up to the Maximum Contribution.  Funds deposited 
into the TIRZ Fund shall always first be applied to pay the Administrative Costs.  After the Administrative 
Costs have been paid, funds in the TIRZ Fund shall next be used to reimburse the Owner or its assigns 
actual Project Costs paid. All payments of Project Costs shall be made solely from the TIRZ Fund and from 
no other funds of the City unless otherwise approved by the governing body, and the TIRZ Fund shall only 
be used to pay the Project Costs in accordance with the Final Plan, the Development Agreement, and the 
TIRZ Agreement, when adopted.  This Final Plan shall obligate the City to deposit into the TIRZ Fund each 
year for the duration of the Zone an amount equal to thirty and one half percent (30.5%) per $100 of 
Captured Appraised Value in the Zone levied and collected that constitutes the contribution of the City’s 
tax increment for that year.  The City may amend this Final Plan in compliance with the Development 
Agreement and the TIRZ Agreement when adopted, including but not limited to what is considered a 
Project Cost. 

 

SECTION 12: DURATION OF THE ZONE, TERMINATION 

12.1 Duration 

The stated term of the Zone shall commence on the creation of the Zone, and shall continue for twenty-
five (25) years, until December 31, 2043, with the last payment being received by September 30, 2044 
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the TIRZ Creation Ordinance, the Development 
Agreement, and the TIRZ Agreement, when adopted. 

12.2 Termination 

The Zone will terminate the earlier of (i) twenty-five (25) years, until December 31, 2043, with the last 
payment being received by September 30, 2044, or (ii) the Maximum Contribution of $19,168,820 has 
been paid to the Owner or its assigns, or (iii) the Owner has been paid an amount equal to the cost of the 
Public Improvement Costs, including 7.0% simple interest accrued on unreimbursed amounts for the costs 
of the Public Improvements.  If upon expiration of the stated term of the Zone, the Maximum Contribution 
of TIRZ revenues, has not been paid to the Owner or its assigns, the City shall have no obligation to pay 
the shortfall and the term shall not be extended.  The provisions of this section shall be included in the 
Development Agreement and the TIRZ Agreement, when adopted.  Nothing in this section is intended to 
prevent the City from extending the term of the Zone in accordance with the Act. 

 

 

 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 8 

 

SECTION 13: TIRZ TRUE UP 

13.1 True Up 

Pursuant to Exhibit O of the TIRZ Agreement when adopted, and the Development Agreement, the 
following test must be applied each year (the “True Up”) to determine how much, if any, funds in the TIRZ 
Fund shall be paid to the Owner to fund Public Improvements.  

The Owner will receive funds from the TIRZ on April 15th of each year until the earlier of (i) 25 years 
beginning on the second April 15th following the creation of the TIRZ, or (ii) the Maximum Contribution 
has been paid to the Owner, or (iii) the Owner has been paid an amount equal to the cost of the TIRZ 
improvements including 7.0% simple interest accrued on unreimbursed amounts for the costs of the TIRZ 
improvements.  

The Development Agreement required the formation of the TIRZ due to the Owner pledging to build 
homes with an average sales price of $287,000 for single family homes (the “Home Price Requirement”) 
and $200,000 for condo/townhomes (the “Condo/Townhome Price Requirement”), which amounts will 
be updated annually based on a published local home price index acceptable to the City and Owner. 

13.2 Single Family Homes 

By April 1st of each year, the City shall cause the following to be performed: 

1. Calculate the Home Price Requirement for the previous two (2) calendar years; 
2. Calculate the average sales price of homes completed in the Project (the “Project Home Price”) 

two (2) calendar years prior (e.g. by April 1, 2018 the City would calculate the average sales price 
of homes completed in calendar year 2016).  The Owner will cause homebuilders in the Project to 
supply the City with the sales price of every home sold within the Project; 

3. Calculate the City TIRZ contribution percentage for all homes completed two (2) calendar years 
prior according to the methodology provided below.  A different City TIRZ contribution 
percentage will be calculated each year, and the City TIRZ contribution for a given calendar year 
will be applied to all homes completed in the Project two (2) calendar years prior.  Once the City 
TIRZ contribution percentage is determined for homes completed in a calendar year, the City TIRZ 
contribution percentage will not change for those homes. 

a. if the Project Home Price equals or exceeds the Home Price Requirement, as updated 
annually, the City will contribute 30.5% of its incremental ad valorem taxes; and 

b. if the Project Home Price is 10% or more below the Home Price Requirement, the City will 
contribute 0% of its incremental ad valorem taxes; and 

c. if the Project Home Price is less than 10% below the Home Price Requirement the City will 
contribute an amount equal to the following formula: 
30.5% × ((Project Home Price ÷ Home Price Requirement – 90%) ÷ 10%). 

13.3 Condos/Townhomes 

By April 1st of each year, the City shall cause the following to be performed: 

1. Calculate the Condo/Townhome Price Requirement for the previous two (2) calendar years; 
2. Calculate the average sales price of homes completed in the Project (the “Project 

Condo/Townhome Price”) two (2) calendar years prior (e.g. by April 1, 2018 the City would 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 9 

 

calculate the average sales price of condos/townhomes completed in calendar year 2016).  The 
Owner will cause homebuilders in the Project to supply the City with the sales price of every 
condos/townhomes sold within the Project; 

3. Calculate the City TIRZ contribution percentage for all condos/townhomes completed two (2) 
calendar years prior according to the methodology provided below.  A different City TIRZ 
contribution percentage will be calculated each year, and the City TIRZ contribution for a given 
calendar year will be applied to all condos/townhomes completed in the Project two (2) calendar 
years prior.  Once the City TIRZ contribution percentage is determined for condos/townhomes 
completed in a calendar year, the City TIRZ contribution percentage will not change for those 
condos/townhomes. 

a. if the Project Condo/Townhome Price equals or exceeds the Condo/Townhome Price 
Requirement, as updated annually, the City will contribute 30.5% of its incremental ad 
valorem taxes; and 

b. if the Project Condo/Townhome Price is 10% or more below the Condo/Townhome Price 
Requirement, the City will contribute 0% of its incremental ad valorem taxes; and 

d. if the Project Condo/Townhome Price is less than 10% below the Condo/Townhome Price 
Requirement the City will contribute an amount equal to the following formula: 
30.5% × ((Project Condo/Townhome Price ÷ Condo/Townhome Price Requirement – 90%) 
÷ 10%). 

13.4 Non-Residential 

By April 1st of each year, the City shall cause the following to be performed: 

1. Calculate the City TIRZ contribution for non-residential property by averaging the City 
contribution percentage for all homes and condos/townhomes for which a City contribution 
percentage has been determined. 

 
13.5 Estimated True Up Percentages 

The estimated percentage of the TIRZ Fund to be paid to the Owner each year pursuant to the True Up is 
shown on Appendix G. The amounts estimated to be paid annually to the Owner are calculated on Exhibit 
H. The total amount paid to the Owner will be the total amount paid from the TIRZ Funds up to the 
Maximum Contribution, until the term expires. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICIES 

Appendix A  Legal Description 
Appendix B  Map 
Appendix C  List of Non-Project Costs 
Appendix D  List of Project Costs 
Appendix E  Estimated Timeline of Incurred Costs 
Appendix F  Feasibility Study 
Appendix G   True Up – Annual Percentage Calculation 
Appendix H  True Up – Feasibility Study 
Appendix I  Development Agreement 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 10 

 

APPENDIX A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

90.089 ACRES OUT OF THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND 
BEING THE TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO RHOF, LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, PER DEED 
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO.2017194263 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

44.0347 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 154, TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN CALLED 180.83 ACRES OF LAND CONVEYED TO 
ALMA JUANITA MEIER, AS DESCRIBED IN VOLUME 11376, PAGE 676, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS 

267.972 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE LEMUEL KIMBRO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 456 AND THE 
A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING THE SAME 267.972 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SKY VILLAGE KIMBRO ESTATES, LLC, AS DESCRIBED IN DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 2016214460, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

(35.626 AC) LOT 2, J.F. NAGLE ESTATES, A SUBDIVISION IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE 
MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 199900207, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, TOGETHER WITH A NON-EXCLUSIVE 60 FOOT WIDE ACCESS AND PUBLIC UTILITY 
EASEMENT AS CREATED AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THAT DECLARATION OF ACCESS AND 
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 1999058184, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING THE SAME 35.626 ACRES CONVYED TO SKY VILLAGE KIMBRO ESTATES, LLC, 
OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

3.469 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE LEMUEL KIMBRO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 456, TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SKY VILLAGE 
KIMBRO ESTATES, LLC, AS RECORDED IN 2017157471 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS 

157.9603 ACRES OUT OF THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO.52, ABSTRACT 154 AND THE LEMUEL KIMBRO 
SURVEY NO.64, ABSTRACT 456, AND BEING THE TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO KIMBRO ROAD ESTATES, 
LP PER DEED RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO.201780865 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 11 

 

APPENDIX B – MAP 

 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 12 

 

APPENDIX C – LIST OF NON-PROJECT COSTS 

 

1,173,540$                        
501,000                              

3,264,030                          
4,938,570$                        

Non-Project Costs

Water Line Project
Wastewater Line Project
Offsite Wastewater Improvements 
Total 



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 13 

 

APPENDIX D – LIST OF PROJECT COSTS 

 

 

 

Project Costs¹
Public Improvements
Offsite Water Improvements 924,000$                      
MAD 4 Roadway/Collector Roadway 8,164,764                    
Phase 2 Wastewater Treatment Plant 2,469,000                    
Enhanced Landscaping 13,988,940                  

Subtotal (Public Improvements Costs) (1) 25,546,704$                

Administrative Costs 121,487$                      
Subtotal (Administrative Costs) (2) 121,487$                      

Total (Project Costs) (3)=(1)+(2) 25,668,191$                

¹ Includes contingency equal to 10.66% of hard costs, soft costs equal 
to 11.22% of hard costs, and 3.74% in permits and fees.



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 14 

 

APPENDIX E – ESTIMATED TIMELINE OF INCURRED COSTS 

 

 

 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Public Improvements Costs -$                  8,515,568$     8,515,568$     8,515,568$     -$                  
Administrative Costs -$                  5,000$             5,100$             5,202$             5,306$             

-$                  8,520,568$     8,520,668$     8,520,770$     5,306$             Total

Year



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 15 

 

APPENDIX F – FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 

 

 

Gross Base Value: 2,815,559         
Exempt Property Value: -                     
Net Base Value: 2,815,559        

Year 
No. Year

Growth/
Year

Added 
Development 

Value
Net Taxable 

Value
Incremental 

Value
City Tax 

Rate

Annual 
Incremental 
City Taxes

Cumulative 
Incremental 
City Taxes

% 
Retained Annual Cumulative 

% 
Retained Annual Cumulative

Annual TIRZ 
Funds 

Available
Admin 
Costs

Annual Deposit to 
TIRZ Fund

0 2018 2.0% -                     2,815,559            -                     0.816100 -                  -                  69.5% -                 -                    30.5% -                -                   -                   -            -                         
1 2019 2.0% -                     2,871,870            56,311              0.816100 -                  -                  69.5% -                 -                    30.5% -                -                   -                   -            -                         
2 2020 2.0% -                     2,929,308            113,749            0.816100 460                 460                 69.5% 319                 319                   30.5% 140               140                  140                  5,000        -                         
3 2021 2.0% 40,500,000       43,487,894          40,672,335      0.816100 928                 1,388              69.5% 645                 965                   30.5% 283               423                  283                  5,100        -                         
4 2022 2.0% 40,710,240       85,067,892          82,252,333      0.816100 331,927         333,315         69.5% 230,689         231,654           30.5% 101,238       101,661          101,238          5,202        86,359                   
5 2023 2.0% 38,962,980       125,732,229       122,916,670    0.816100 671,261         1,004,576      69.5% 466,527         698,180           30.5% 204,735       306,396          204,735          5,306        199,429                 
6 2024 2.0% 40,387,454       168,634,328       165,818,769    0.816100 1,003,123      2,007,699      69.5% 697,170         1,395,351        30.5% 305,952       612,348          305,952          5,412        300,540                 
7 2025 2.0% 45,809,611       217,816,626       215,001,067    0.816100 1,353,247      3,360,946      69.5% 940,507         2,335,857        30.5% 412,740       1,025,089       412,740          5,520        407,220                 
8 2026 2.0% 57,444,441       279,617,400       276,801,841    0.816100 1,754,624      5,115,570      69.5% 1,219,463     3,555,321        30.5% 535,160       1,560,249       535,160          5,631        529,529                 
9 2027 2.0% 53,390,459       338,600,207       335,784,648    0.816100 2,258,980      7,374,550      69.5% 1,569,991     5,125,312        30.5% 688,989       2,249,238       688,989          5,743        683,245                 

10 2028 2.0% 54,458,269       399,830,480       397,014,921    0.816100 2,740,339      10,114,888    69.5% 1,904,535     7,029,847        30.5% 835,803       3,085,041       835,803          5,858        829,945                 
11 2029 2.0% 55,547,434       463,374,523       460,558,964    0.816100 3,240,039      13,354,927    69.5% 2,251,827     9,281,674        30.5% 988,212       4,073,253       988,212          5,975        982,236                 
12 2030 2.0% 47,090,232       519,732,246       516,916,687    0.816100 3,758,622      17,113,549    69.5% 2,612,242     11,893,916     30.5% 1,146,380    5,219,632       1,146,380       6,095        1,140,285             
13 2031 2.0% 31,596,335       561,723,226       558,907,667    0.816100 4,218,557      21,332,106    69.5% 2,931,897     14,825,813     30.5% 1,286,660    6,506,292       1,286,660       6,217        1,280,443             
14 2032 2.0% -                     572,957,691       570,142,132    0.816100 4,561,245      25,893,351    69.5% 3,170,066     17,995,879     30.5% 1,391,180    7,897,472       1,391,180       6,341        1,384,839             
15 2033 2.0% -                     584,416,845       581,601,286    0.816100 4,652,930      30,546,281    69.5% 3,233,786     21,229,665     30.5% 1,419,144    9,316,616       1,419,144       6,468        1,412,676             
16 2034 2.0% -                     596,105,182       593,289,623    0.816100 4,746,448      35,292,729    69.5% 3,298,781     24,528,447     30.5% 1,447,667    10,764,282    1,447,667       6,597        1,441,069             
17 2035 2.0% -                     608,027,285       605,211,726    0.816100 4,841,837      40,134,566    69.5% 3,365,076     27,893,523     30.5% 1,476,760    12,241,043    1,476,760       6,729        1,470,031             
18 2036 2.0% -                     620,187,831       617,372,272    0.816100 4,939,133      45,073,699    69.5% 3,432,697     31,326,221     30.5% 1,506,436    13,747,478    1,506,436       6,864        1,499,572             
19 2037 2.0% -                     632,591,588       629,776,029    0.816100 5,038,375      50,112,074    69.5% 3,501,671     34,827,891     30.5% 1,536,704    15,284,182    1,536,704       7,001        1,529,703             
20 2038 2.0% -                     645,243,419       642,427,860    0.816100 5,139,602      55,251,676    69.5% 3,572,024     38,399,915     30.5% 1,567,579    16,851,761    1,567,579       7,141        1,560,437             
21 2039 2.0% -                     658,148,288       655,332,729    0.816100 5,242,854      60,494,530    69.5% 3,643,783     42,043,698     30.5% 1,599,070    18,450,832    1,599,070       7,284        1,591,786             
22 2040 2.0% -                     671,311,253       668,495,694    0.816100 5,348,170      65,842,700    84.3% 4,508,695     46,552,393     15.7% 839,475       19,290,307    839,475          -            839,475                 
23 2041 2.0% -                     684,737,479       681,921,920    0.816100 5,455,593      71,298,293    100.0% 5,455,593     52,007,987     0.0% -                19,290,307    -                   -            -                         
24 2042 2.0% -                     698,432,228       695,616,669    0.816100 5,565,165      76,863,458    100.0% 5,565,165     57,573,151     0.0% -                19,290,307    -                   -            -                         
25 2043 2.0% -                     712,400,873       709,585,314    0.816100 5,676,928      82,540,386    100.0% 5,676,928     63,250,079     0.0% -                19,290,307    -                   -            -                         

19,290,307    121,487   19,168,820           

City TIRZ
Tax Increment Allocation

Value Assumptions



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 16 

 

APPENDIX G – TRUE UP – ANNUAL PERCENTAGE CALCULATION 

TIRZ 
Year Year 50' 55' 60'

Condos 
(Medium 
Density) Commercial 50' 55' 60'

Condos 
(Medium 
Density) Commercial

Project 
Condo Price

Condo Price 
Requirement2

% of 
Requirement

% of TIRZ 
Captured

Total % of 
TIRZ 

Captured
Project 

Home Price
Home Price 

Requirement2
% of 

Requirement
% of TIRZ 
Captured

% of Annual 
TIRZ Paid to 
Developer

1 2019 -      -   -   -               -                270,000    287,000    297,000    204,000        200                -                200,000            0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -               287,000           0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
2 2020 150     -   -   -               -                270,000    287,000    297,000    204,000        200                -                204,000            0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 270,000      292,740           92.23% 22.32% 22.32%
3 2021 126     12     -   12                -                275,400    292,740    302,940    208,080        204                208,080       208,080            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 276,908      298,595           92.74% 27.37% 24.77%
4 2022 56       38     -   56                -                280,908    298,595    308,999    212,242        208                212,242       212,242            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 288,058      304,567           94.58% 45.80% 30.15%
5 2023 113     -   -   37                -                286,526    304,567    315,179    216,486        212                216,486       216,486            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 286,526      310,658           92.23% 22.32% 28.32%
6 2024 67       42     41     -               -                292,257    310,658    321,482    220,816        216                -                220,816            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 305,397      316,871           96.38% 63.79% 37.22%
7 2025 145     -   -   5                  59,296         298,102    316,871    327,912    225,232        221                225,232       225,232            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 298,102      323,209           92.23% 22.32% 33.70%
8 2026 75       -   -   75                59,296         304,064    323,209    334,470    229,737        225                229,737       229,737            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 304,064      329,673           92.23% 22.32% 32.19%
9 2027 75       -   -   75                59,296         310,145    329,673    341,160    234,332        230                234,332       234,332            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 310,145      336,266           92.23% 22.32% 31.02%

10 2028 75       -   -   75                59,296         316,348    336,266    347,983    239,019        234                239,019       239,019            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 316,348      342,992           92.23% 22.32% 30.07%
11 2029 56       38     21     35                -                322,675    342,992    354,942    243,799        239                243,799       243,799            100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 335,281      349,851           95.84% 58.35% 32.87%
12 2030 96       -   -   -               -                329,128    349,851    362,041    248,675        244                -                248,675            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 329,128      356,848           92.23% 22.32% 32.08%
13 2031 -      -   -   -               -                335,711    356,848    369,282    253,648        249                -                253,648            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               363,985           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
14 2032 -      -   -   -               -                342,425    363,985    376,668    258,721        254                -                258,721            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               371,265           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
15 2033 -      -   -   -               -                349,274    371,265    384,201    263,896        259                -                263,896            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               378,690           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
16 2034 -      -   -   -               -                356,259    378,690    391,885    269,174        264                -                269,174            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               386,264           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
17 2035 -      -   -   -               -                363,384    386,264    399,723    274,557        269                -                274,557            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               393,989           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
18 2036 -      -   -   -               -                370,652    393,989    407,717    280,048        275                -                280,048            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               401,869           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
19 2037 -      -   -   -               -                378,065    401,869    415,872    285,649        280                -                285,649            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               409,907           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
20 2038 -      -   -   -               -                385,626    409,907    424,189    291,362        286                -                291,362            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               418,105           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
21 2039 -      -   -   -               -                393,339    418,105    432,673    297,189        291                -                297,189            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               426,467           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
22 2040 -      -   -   -               -                401,206    426,467    441,326    303,133        297                -                303,133            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               434,996           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
23 2041 -      -   -   -               -                409,230    434,996    450,153    309,196        303                -                309,196            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               443,696           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
24 2042 -      -   -   -               -                417,415    443,696    459,156    315,380        309                -                315,380            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               452,570           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%
25 2043 -      -   -   -               -                425,763    452,570    468,339    321,687        315                -                321,687            0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -               461,621           0.00% 0.00% 32.08%

1,034 130  62     370              237,184       

1 Per the terms contained in Exhibit O of the Development Agreement.
2 Assumes 2% annual escalation of local home price index used to determine Condo Price Requirement and Home Price Requirement.

Total

Number of Lots Estimated Assessed Value Per Unit True-Up Calculations1



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 17 

 

APPENDIX H – TRUE UP – FEASIBILITY STUDY (1 OF 2) 

 

 

Gross Base Value: 2,815,559            
Exempt Property Value: -                        

Net Base Value: 2,815,559            

Year 
No. Year

Growth/
Year

Added 
Development 

Value1
Net Taxable 

Value
Incremental 

Value
City Tax 

Rate

Annual 
Incremental 
City Taxes

Cumulative 
Incremental 
City Taxes

% 
Retained Annual Cumulative 

% 
Retained Annual Cumulative

0 2018 2.0% -                         2,815,559            -                     0.816100 -                  -                  69.5% -                 -                    30.5% -                -                   
1 2019 2.0% -                         2,871,870            56,311              0.816100 -                  -                  69.5% -                 -                    30.5% -                -                   
2 2020 2.0% -                         2,929,308            113,749            0.816100 460                 460                 69.5% 319                 319                   30.5% 140               140                  
3 2021 2.0% 38,400,000          41,387,894          38,572,335      0.816100 928                 1,388              69.5% 645                 965                   30.5% 283               423                  
4 2022 2.0% 38,727,360          80,943,012          78,127,453      0.816100 314,789         316,177         69.5% 218,778         219,743           30.5% 96,011          96,434            
5 2023 2.0% 37,554,278          120,116,150       117,300,591    0.816100 637,598         953,775         69.5% 443,131         662,874           30.5% 194,467       290,901          
6 2024 2.0% 38,708,623          161,227,096       158,411,537    0.816100 957,290         1,911,065      69.5% 665,317         1,328,190        30.5% 291,973       582,875          
7 2025 2.0% 43,890,459          208,342,097       205,526,538    0.816100 1,292,797      3,203,862      69.5% 898,494         2,226,684        30.5% 394,303       977,178          
8 2026 2.0% 55,203,157          267,712,096       264,896,537    0.816100 1,677,302      4,881,164      69.5% 1,165,725     3,392,409        30.5% 511,577       1,488,755       
9 2027 2.0% 52,207,989          325,274,327       322,458,768    0.816100 2,161,821      7,042,984      69.5% 1,502,465     4,894,874        30.5% 659,355       2,148,110       

10 2028 2.0% 53,252,149          385,031,962       382,216,403    0.816100 2,631,586      9,674,570      69.5% 1,828,952     6,723,826        30.5% 802,634       2,950,744       
11 2029 2.0% 54,317,192          447,049,793       444,234,234    0.816100 3,119,268      12,793,838    69.5% 2,167,891     8,891,718        30.5% 951,377       3,902,121       
12 2030 2.0% 45,346,592          501,337,381       498,521,822    0.816100 3,625,396      16,419,234    69.5% 2,519,650     11,411,368     30.5% 1,105,746    5,007,866       
13 2031 2.0% 29,958,007          541,322,136       538,506,577    0.816100 4,068,437      20,487,670    69.5% 2,827,563     14,238,931     30.5% 1,240,873    6,248,739       
14 2032 2.0% -                         552,148,578       549,333,019    0.816100 4,394,752      24,882,423    69.5% 3,054,353     17,293,284     30.5% 1,340,399    7,589,139       
15 2033 2.0% -                         563,191,550       560,375,991    0.816100 4,483,107      29,365,529    69.5% 3,115,759     20,409,043     30.5% 1,367,348    8,956,486       
16 2034 2.0% -                         574,455,381       571,639,822    0.816100 4,573,228      33,938,758    69.5% 3,178,394     23,587,437     30.5% 1,394,835    10,351,321    
17 2035 2.0% -                         585,944,489       583,128,930    0.816100 4,665,153      38,603,910    69.5% 3,242,281     26,829,718     30.5% 1,422,872    11,774,193    
18 2036 2.0% -                         597,663,378       594,847,819    0.816100 4,758,915      43,362,826    69.5% 3,307,446     30,137,164     30.5% 1,451,469    13,225,662    
19 2037 2.0% -                         609,616,646       606,801,087    0.816100 4,854,553      48,217,379    69.5% 3,373,914     33,511,078     30.5% 1,480,639    14,706,301    
20 2038 2.0% -                         621,808,979       618,993,420    0.816100 4,952,104      53,169,482    69.5% 3,441,712     36,952,790     30.5% 1,510,392    16,216,692    
21 2039 2.0% -                         634,245,158       631,429,599    0.816100 5,051,605      58,221,088    69.5% 3,510,866     40,463,656     30.5% 1,540,740    17,757,432    
22 2040 2.0% -                         646,930,062       644,114,503    0.816100 5,153,097      63,374,185    69.5% 3,581,402     44,045,058     30.5% 1,571,695    19,329,126    
23 2041 2.0% -                         659,868,663       657,053,104    0.816100 5,256,618      68,630,803    69.5% 3,653,350     47,698,408     30.5% 1,603,269    20,932,395    
24 2042 2.0% -                         673,066,036       670,250,477    0.816100 5,362,210      73,993,013    69.5% 3,726,736     51,425,144     30.5% 1,635,474    22,567,869    
25 2043 2.0% -                         686,527,357       683,711,798    0.816100 5,469,914      79,462,928    69.5% 3,801,590     55,226,735     30.5% 1,668,324    24,236,193    

1 Only includes development in years where the Home Price Requirement is met as described in Exhibit O of the Development Agreement.

City TIRZ

Value Assumptions

Tax Increment Allocation



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN 18 

 

APPENDIX H – TRUE UP – FEASIBILITY STUDY (2 OF 2) 

Year 
No. Year

Annual TIRZ 
Funds 

Available

% Annual TIRZ 
Amount to 
Developer

Developer Annual 
TIRZ Funds 
Available

Public 
Improvements 

Costs
Administrative 

Costs TIRZ Interest

Public Improvements 
Costs & Interest 

Reimbursed to Owner

Unreimbursed Public 
Improvement Costs & 

Interest
0 2018 -                   0.00% -                            -                       -                           -                                      -                                      -                                      
1 2019 -                   0.00% -                            -                       -                           -                                      -                                      -                                      
2 2020 140                  22.32% 31                              8,515,568           5,000                       -                                      -                                      -                                      
3 2021 283                  24.77% 70                              8,515,568           5,100                       595,376                             -                                      -                                      
4 2022 96,011            30.15% 28,949                      8,515,568           5,202                       1,189,075                          23,747                               27,307,407                       
5 2023 194,467          28.32% 55,067                      -                       5,306                       1,780,938                          49,761                               29,038,585                       
6 2024 291,973          37.22% 108,671                    -                       5,412                       1,772,953                          103,259                             30,708,279                       
7 2025 394,303          33.70% 132,882                    -                       5,520                       1,763,265                          127,362                             32,344,182                       
8 2026 511,577          32.19% 164,689                    -                       5,631                       1,751,342                          159,058                             33,936,466                       
9 2027 659,355          31.02% 204,511                    -                       5,743                       1,736,624                          198,768                             35,474,323                       

10 2028 802,634          30.07% 241,392                    -                       5,858                       1,719,317                          235,533                             36,958,106                       
11 2029 951,377          32.87% 312,689                    -                       5,975                       1,697,010                          306,714                             38,348,402                       
12 2030 1,105,746       32.08% 354,752                    -                       6,095                       1,671,751                          348,657                             39,671,496                       
13 2031 1,240,873       32.08% 398,104                    -                       6,217                       1,643,449                          391,887                             40,923,057                       
14 2032 1,340,399       32.08% 430,035                    -                       6,341                       1,612,902                          423,694                             42,112,266                       
15 2033 1,367,348       32.08% 438,681                    -                       6,468                       1,581,742                          432,213                             43,261,795                       
16 2034 1,394,835       32.08% 447,499                    -                       6,597                       1,549,955                          440,902                             44,370,848                       
17 2035 1,422,872       32.08% 456,494                    -                       6,729                       1,517,529                          449,765                             45,438,613                       
18 2036 1,451,469       32.08% 465,669                    -                       6,864                       1,484,452                          458,805                             46,464,260                       
19 2037 1,480,639       32.08% 475,027                    -                       7,001                       1,450,710                          468,026                             47,446,944                       
20 2038 1,510,392       32.08% 484,573                    -                       7,141                       1,416,290                          477,432                             48,385,802                       
21 2039 1,540,740       32.08% 494,309                    -                       7,284                       1,381,179                          487,025                             49,279,955                       
22 2040 1,571,695       32.08% 504,240                    -                       7,430                       1,345,362                          496,811                             50,128,506                       
23 2041 1,603,269       32.08% 514,370                    -                       7,578                       1,308,825                          506,792                             50,930,539                       
24 2042 1,635,474       32.08% 524,703                    -                       7,730                       1,271,555                          516,973                             51,685,122                       
25 2043 1,668,324       32.08% 535,242                    -                       7,884                       1,233,536                          527,357                             52,391,301                       

24,236,193    7,772,650                25,546,704         152,109                  34,475,136                       7,630,539                         Total



  
TIRZ NO. 1, CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS FINAL PLAN  

 

APPENDIX I – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 

























































































































































 AGENDA ITEM NO.______

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 
 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:       

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:  
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE  

7

November 6, 2019

Thomas Bolt, City Manager

Administration 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an amendment to the Development Agreement (Manor 
Heights).  

The City Council approved the Development Agreement (Manor Heights) on November 7, 2018 which 
included certain provisions and deadlines. Due to changes in state statute after the last legislative session 
and project delays, amendments to the Development Agreement to address extension of deadlines and 
compliance with state statute are being requested for consideration by City Council. 

Amendment Development Agreement 
TIRZ Letter - FORESTAR

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve the amendment to the Development 
Agreement (Manor Heights).  



 
 

 1 
   
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Manor Heights) 

 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) 
is dated effective November 6, 2019 (the “Amendment Effective Date”) and is entered into 
between the CITY OF MANOR, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (the “City”) and SKY 
VILLAGE KIMBRO ESTATES, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, its authorized and 
approved successors and assigns, and RHOF, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, its 
authorized and approved successors and assigns (collectively, the “Developer”). The City and the 
Developer are sometimes referred to herein as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. City and Developer previously entered into that certain Development Agreement 
dated effective November 7, 2018 (the “Agreement”) for that certain Project (as defined therein) 
located in the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, as more particularly described in the 
Agreement. 

 
B. Developer owns (or is under contract to purchase) the Property (as defined in the 

Agreement). 
 
C. City and Developer desire to modify and amend the Agreement in certain respects, 

as more particularly set forth in this Amendment. 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer hereby agree as follows: 

 
1) Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and 

made a part of this Amendment to the same extent as if set forth herein in full. 
 

2) Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms in this Amendment shall have the same 
meanings as in the Agreement unless expressly provided otherwise herein. 
 

3) PUD Zoning.  Since the approval of the Agreement, the City has approved 
Ordinance No. 534 (the “PUD Ordinance”) which established the PUD Zoning for the Property.  
Due to recent legislation that prohibits a City from requiring certain building materials, the 
Developer hereby agrees that all of the design standards and guidelines included in the PUD, 
including but not limited to the use of certain building materials as set forth in the PUD Ordinance 
shall apply to the Project. Section 4.03 of the Agreement is hereby updated to reflect that the PUD 
has been approved. In addition, Developer agrees to apply to the structures located on the Property 
a minimum of thirty percent (30%) masonry to the front façade and said masonry must be stone, 
brick or stucco. Applications for building permits shall demonstrate compliance with this section 



 
 

  2 
 

and the Developer acknowledges and agrees that the City will reject building permit applications 
and deny certificates of occupancy for structures that do not comply with this section. 

 
4) Utility Commitment (Water).  In addition to the terms and conditions contained in 

Article XI, the City and the Developer hereby agree as follows: 
 
The City will submit to the Public Utilities Commission (the “PUC”) a “Notice of Intent 

to Serve” (the “Notice”) for all of the Property, save and except the Nagle 2 Tract (defined below), 
within thirty (30) days after the Amendment Effective Date. After submittal to the PUC, the City 
shall thereafter diligently pursue obtaining the final approval from PUC so that the City may 
provide water utility service to the Property, save and except the Nagle 2 Tract. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any and all costs associated with the Notice to obtain final approval from 
the PUC in order for the City to provide water utility service to the Property, save and except the 
Nagle 2 Tract.  

 
  The Developer will submit to Manville Special Utility District (“Manville”) a petition to 

decertify the portion of the Property more particularly described on Exhibit “P” attached hereto 
(the “Nagle 2 Tract”) from Manville’s CCN on or before the City’s approval of the final plat of 
Phase 4 of the Project and shall thereafter diligently pursue the decertification from Manville’s 
CCN. The Developer shall be responsible for any and all costs of such decertification. If the 
Developer and Manville settle on an amount to be paid to Manville in order to decertify the Nagle 
2 Tract, the Developer agrees to enter into an agreement with Manville and the City prior to any 
agreed to settlement payment being made to Manville. 

 
Upon decertification of the Nagle 2 Tract, the City hereby agrees to submit to the PUC a 

“Notice of Intent to Serve” for the Nagle 2 Tract (the “Nagle Notice”) within thirty (30) days after 
Developer provides the City with notice that Manville has approved the decertification.  After 
submittal to the PUC, the City shall thereafter diligently pursue obtaining the final approval from 
PUC so that the City may provide water utility service to the Nagle 2 Tract. The Developer shall 
be responsible for any and all costs associated with the Nagle Notice to obtain final approval from 
the PUC in order for the City to provide water utility service to the Nagle 2 Tract. 

  
5) TCEQ Wastewater Discharge Permit.  The last sentence of Section 10.01(b) shall 

be deleted and replaced in its entirety with the following: 
 

“The City submitted an administratively complete application to TCEQ for 
the Permit on April 17, 2019 and is being diligent and using its best efforts 
to obtain Permit approval by responding to all TCEQ administrative 
comments received.”  

 
6) Payment of Design Fees.  Section 10.01(d) shall be deleted and replaced in its 

entirety with the following: 
 

“Developer has contributed $81,594.00 towards the design of the Plant. 
These Costs shall be reimbursed to Developer through the PID.” 
 



 
 

  3 
 

7) Period of Pump and Haul Service.  Section 12.02 shall be deleted and replaced in 
its entirety with the following: 

 
“If requested by the Developer, pump and haul services described in Section 
12.01 shall be provided by the City at the Developer’s expense until such 
time as the Plant and the Offsite Wastewater Improvements are complete 
and operational. After the date by which the Plant is to be completed (as set 
forth in the fourth paragraph of Article XIII), if the Plant is not complete 
and operational (“operational” shall include having 121 single-family 
residential customers necessary to properly operate the Plant), the City will 
provide pump and haul service to the Property (save and except Manor 
Heights South) at the City’s expense until such time as the Plant is complete 
and operational.” 

 
8) Public Improvement District.  
 

(a) The first and second paragraphs of Article XIII shall be deleted and replaced 
in their entirety with the following: 

 
“The City intends to issue special revenue bonds (“PID Bonds”) with a 
minimum 3:1 value to lien in an amount that will not exceed $30,000,000 
secured by special assessments levied on the Property in the District to help 
finance certain public improvements in the District, primarily a portion of 
the Offsite Wastewater Improvements.  Such public improvements and bond 
financing will be more particularly described in the Service and Assessment 
Plan (herein so called) and the PID Financing Agreement (herein so called) 
for the PID. The City and the Developer will enter into the PID Finance 
Agreement and agree upon the terms of the Service and Assessment Plan as 
soon as practicable after the Effective Date and prior to PID Bonds being 
issued.  The Developer may elect to not have PID Bonds issued upfront (i.e. 
PID Bonds issued and funds used to finance public improvements as 
construction progresses) (“Upfront PID Bonds”) but rather delay the 
issuance of PID Bonds, commence construction of public improvements 
and have the bond proceeds reimburse Developer for construction of public 
improvements that have already been completed and accepted by the City 
(“Reimbursement PID Bonds”). Developer shall make this determination 
and notify the City on or before March 1, 2020. If the City does not timely 
receive this notification, Developer shall be deemed to have elected for 
Upfront PID Bonds to be issued. 
 
If the City does not issue PID Bonds with a minimum 3:1 value to lien that 
will not exceed $30,000,000 six months after the Developer has requested 
the issuance of bonds or within a reasonable time after Developer’s request 
therefore (provided Developer has not caused the delay of the issuance of 
PID Bonds) , then Developer and City hereby agree that (i) the City shall be 
solely responsible for all obligations and expenses related to providing 



 
 

  4 
 

wastewater service to the Property, except as otherwise provided by City 
Ordinance (provided Developer has constructed the wastewater line 
depicted on Exhibit “K” and the Plant), and (ii) City shall immediately 
release any fiscal Developer has deposited for the Downstream Wastewater 
Improvements; provided that if the City issues PID Bonds as contemplated 
by this Agreement after six months after the Developer has requested 
issuance of bonds, then subsections (i) and (ii) shall not apply. If the 
Developer has not requested the issuance of bonds on or before August 31, 
2021 and the PID dissolves in accordance with the Dissolution Agreement 
entered into by Developer and City, this Agreement, as amended shall 
terminate.” 
 
(b) The fourth paragraph of Article XIII shall be deleted and replaced in its 

entirety with the following: 
 
“Unless the completion of the Plant is caused by Developer delays, the 
Parties agree that construction of the Plant shall be completed (i) fifteen (15) 
months from the date the Developer deposits with the City or an escrow 
agent agreed upon by the Parties a cash deposit (or such other form of fiscal 
security acceptable to the City) in an amount equal to 110% of the cost to 
design and construct the Plant, if Developer selects Reimbursement PID 
Bonds; or fifteen (15) months from the date Upfront PID Bonds are issued 
and the Developer deposits with the City or an escrow agent agreed upon 
by the Parties a cash deposit in an amount equal to the difference between 
the amount of the Upfront PID Bonds available and on deposit with the PID 
Trustee for the purpose of the design and construction of the Plant and 110% 
of the cost of designing and constructing the Plant. If there are delays in the 
design and construction of the Plant not caused by the City, an extension for 
completion of the Plant shall be agreed upon by letter agreement between 
the Parties.”   

 
9) Formation of the TIRZ.  For purposes of clarification, as of the Amendment 

Effective Date, the City has approved the formation of the TIRZ and the corresponding Financing 
Plan for the TIRZ contemplated in Article XIII and the third paragraph of Article XIII is no longer 
applicable. 
 

10) Approved Assignment.  The City hereby approves FORESTAR (USA) REAL 
ESTATE GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Forestar”) as a Designated Successor and 
Assign of Developer should Forestar become the owner of the Property on or before November 6, 
2019. 

  
11) Ratification of Agreement/Conflict. All terms and conditions of the Agreement are 

hereby ratified and affirmed, as modified by this Amendment. To the extent there is any 
inconsistency between the Agreement and this Amendment, the provisions of this Amendment 
shall control.  
 



 
 

  5 
 

12) No Waiver. Neither City’s nor Developer’s execution of this Amendment shall (a) 
constitute a waiver of any of its rights and remedies under the Agreement or at law with respect to 
the other party’s obligations under the Agreement or (b) be construed as a bar to any subsequent 
enforcement of any of its rights or remedies against the other party. 
 

13) Governing Law. This Amendment shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas. 
 

14) Entire Agreement. The Parties hereto agree and understand that no oral agreements, 
or understandings, shall be binding, unless reduced to a writing which is signed by said Parties. 
The Parties hereto agree and understand that this Amendment shall be binding on them, their 
personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 
 

15) Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which will be deemed an original, and all of which will constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
 
 

[Signature pages follow]



 
 

 6 
   
 

EXECUTED in multiple originals, and in full force and effect as of the Amendment 
Effective Date. 

 
      CITY: 
 
      CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, 

a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
 

By: ___________________________ 
      Name: Rita G. Jonse   
      Title: Mayor 
Attest: 
 
By:  _________________________ 
Name: Lluvia T. Almaraz 
Title: City Secretary  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _________________________ 
Name: Veronica Rivera 
Title: Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2019, 
by Rita G. Jonse, Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, 
on behalf of said corporation. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 



 
 

 7 
   
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
      SKY VILLAGE KIMBRO ESTATES, LLC, 
      a Texas limited liability company 
     
      By: _______________________________ 
      Name: _______________________________ 
      Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF __________ § 
 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2019, 
by __________________, ________________ of Sky Village Kimbro Estates, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, on behalf of said company. 

 

            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of ___________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

8 
 

RHOF, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 
 
By: _______________________________ 

      Name: _______________________________ 
      Title: _______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF __________ § 
 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2019, 
by __________________, ________________ of RHOF LLC, a Texas limited liability company, 
on behalf of said company. 

 

            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of ___________ 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

9 
 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 
 
FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP,  
INC., a Delaware corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 
 

 

  



 
 

10 
 

Exhibit “P” 
Manville Petition 

 

 

 







 AGENDA ITEM NO.______

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 
 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:       

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:  
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE  

8

November 6, 2019

Thomas Bolt, City Manager

Administration 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Assignment and Assumption of the Development 
Agreement regarding Manor Heights.  

Sky Village Kimbro Estates, LLC and RHOF, LLC (collectively, the "Developer") and the City entered into 
that Development Agreement (Manor Heights) on November 7, 2018. (the "Development Agreement") 
The Developer is under contract to sell all or most of the property covered by the Development 
Agreement to Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. ("Forestar"). In accordance with the terms of the 
Development Agreement, the Developer has requested that the City Council consent to the assignment of 
all of Developer's rights, title and interest to the Development Agreement to Forestar in connection with 
the sale of the property. 

Assignment and Assumption of Development Agreement

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council consent to the Assignment and Assumption of the 
Development Agreement regarding Manor Heights and directs the City Manager to execute the consent.

















AGENDA ITEM NO.______  

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:  

PREPARED BY:  

DEPARTMENT:
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 
 
 
 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE            

9

November 6, 2019

Frank T. Phelan, P.E.

City Engineer

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on award of a contract addendum for professional services for the 
FY 2019 Capital Metro BCT Paving Improvements Project.

Engineering design, bidding and construction phase services for the paving improvements project.  

■

■

approved project list letter  
Proposed contract addendum

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council award a contract addendum to Jay Engineering Company, Inc. 
for design, bidding and construction phase services for the FY 2019 Capital Metro BCT Paving Improvements 
Project.

■



CITY OF 

'MANOR 
EST. * 1872 

TE~S 

July 12, 2019 

Ms. Cluisty D. Willhite 
Govenunent Relations and Compliance Manager 
Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
2910 East Fifth Street 
Austin, TX 78702 

Re: BCT Suburban Communities Program 
FY 2018 Project List 
City of Manor, Texas 

Dear Ms. Willhite: 

Please accept the following proposal and project list for you review and approval: 

Street Reconstruction and Resurfacing Including: Excavation, Subgrade Preparation, Flex Base, Paving Fabric and 
Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete in selected areas; Level-Up and Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete in selected areas. 

1. N. La Grange Street from E. Eggleston Street to E. Murray Street, 300-800 Blocks 
2. N. Burnet Street from E. Rector Street to E. Murray Street, 500&600 Blocks (Alt.) 
3. S. San Marcos Street from E. Brenham Street to railroad tracks, 100-300 Blocks (Alt.) 

Total Anticipated Construction Costs (1 ,800 LF x $74.96/LF): $291,000 
Engineering: $ 28,300 
Contingencies: $ 26,400 
Total Anticipated Project Costs: $346,600 

Budgeted funding for the project is as follows: 

2018 Cap Metro BCT Funds: 
City of Manor Street and Drainage Funds: 
Total Budgeted Project Funding: 

$106,000 
$240,600 
$346,600 

We trust that you will find this proposal for the projects for FY 2019 approvable, and look forward to hearing from you soon. 
If you should have any questions, or need additional information regarding the City of Manor 's participation in the BCT 
Suburban Communities Program, please let us know. 

Sincerely, 

Tom Bolt, City Manager 
City of Manor, Texas 

Copy: Jay Engineering Company, Inc. 

1 05 E . EGGL ESTON STREET • P .O . Box 387 • M ANOR, TEXAS 78653 
(T) 5 1 2.272.5555 • (F) 5 1 2 .272.8636 • WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

franktemp
Text Box
9



EXHIBIT B 

ADDENDUM NO. 55 

ADDENDUM TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

An addendum to the Professional Services Agreement between the City of Manor, Texas, as CLIENT, 
and Jay Engineering Company, Inc., as ENGINEER, dated October 15, 2001. 

Through this addendum, CLIENT hereby authorizes ENGINEER to undertake the work assignment described 
in the following, said assignment to be performed within the terms and conditions defined in said Professional 
Services Agreement, except as modified herein. 

ASSIGNMENT:  FY 2019 CAPITAL METRO BCT PAVING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

 See attached.

Scope as defined in the following:  Prepare drawings, specifications and contract documents for FY 2019 
Capital Metro BCT Paving Improvements Project.  Design surveys and construction observation are included 
herein. Boundary or easement survey work for land acquisition, geotechnical investigations, and design of 
access or drainage improvements are not included herein. 

COMPENSATION: 

 Lump Sum Fee of $28,300 

 ____ (%) Preset Percent of Construction Cost (curve fee times actual construction cost)

 TSPE/ACEC Fees of Median Compensation (fee determined by actual construction cost)

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  JAY ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. 

By:_________________________   By:___________________________ 

Date: _______________________   Date: _________________________ 

Jaeco Project No. 100-081-20 

October 30, 2019



AGENDA ITEM NO.______  

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:        

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 
 
 
 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE            

10

November 6, 2019

Frank T. Phelan, P.E.

City Engineer

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on award of a contract addendum for Advisory Consulting services 
for the 2020 Community Impact Fee Update project.

Community Impact Fee (CIF) programs are updated at a minimum every five years to comply with the statutory 
requirements of Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code.  The last update to the Water and Wastewater CIF 
programs was conducted in 2016.  During the course of a recent amendment to the Wastewater Capital 
Improvements Plan (a component of the CIF program) City Staff determined that a full update to both the Water 
and Wastewater CIFs is recommended now to accommodate recent developments in City growth and to better 
provide for current demands for new utility services.  The process will take roughly six months to complete the 
update.  The City's Planning and Zoning Commission in concert with a development representative and the 
Advisory Consultant will develop the updates for Council consideration and final CIF Ordinance adoption. 

■

■

Proposed contract addendum 

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council award a contract addendum to Jay Engineering Company, Inc. 
for Advisory Consulting services for the 2020 Community Impact Fee Update project.

■



EXHIBIT B 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 54 
 

 
ADDENDUM TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 
An addendum to the Professional Services Agreement between the City of Manor, Texas, as CLIENT,  
and Jay Engineering Company, Inc., as ENGINEER, dated October 15, 2001. 
 
Through this addendum, CLIENT hereby authorizes ENGINEER to undertake the work assignment described 
in the following, said assignment to be performed within the terms and conditions defined in said Professional 
Services Agreement, except as modified herein. 
 
 
ASSIGNMENT:  2020 UPDATE – COMMUNITY IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE, WITH STUDIES, MAPPING, 
COST ANALYSES, MEETINGS AND HEARINGS.  
 
 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES:  
 
 See attached. 
 
 Scope as defined in the following:  Review current program status and new growth needs with advisory 

committee.  Perform growth projections, land use assumptions, and conduct public hearing/meetings.  

Develop impact fee project list for water and wastewater, prepare cost estimates with fee-eligible 

portions, recommend new fee structure and conduct public hearing/meetings.  Furnish support 

documentation and mapping for City files and provide implementation guidelines.    

COMPENSATION: 
 

 Lump Sum Fee of $30,600 
 ____ (%) Preset Percent of Construction Cost (curve fee times actual construction cost) 

 
 TSPE/ACEC Fees of Median Compensation (fee determined by actual construction cost) 

 
 
 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS    JAY ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. 
 
 
 
By:_________________________   By:___________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________   Date: _________________________  
 

JAECO Project No.100-082-20 

October 30, 2019



AGENDA ITEM NO.______ 

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET    P.O. BOX 387    MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555    (F) 512.272.8636    WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE 

11

November 6, 2019

Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Director

Development Services

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending Manor Code of Ordinances by adding 
Article 1.14 Public Tree Care to Chapter 1, General Provisions establishing public tree care regulations and 
establishing a public tree advisory committee.

In order to become a certified Tree City USA by the Arbor Day Foundation, one of the requirements is the creation 
of Public Tree Care ordinance. This ordinance allows for public works to maintain and plant trees within the city's 
ROW and/or on city property. It also forms a Public Tree Advisory Committee, which is comprised of the already 
formed Parks Committee plus 2 members of P&Z who will be appointed by the Council, to oversee the protection, 
health and installation of public trees as well as coordinating education and outreach activities in the community.

■

■

Ordinance No. 559

It is City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve an Ordinance No. 559 amending Manor Code of 
Ordinances by adding Article 1.14 Public Tree Care to Chapter 1, General Provisions establishing public tree care 
regulations and establishing a public tree advisory committee.



ORDINANCE NO. 559 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS BY 
ADDING ARTICLE 1.14, PUBLIC TREE CARE, TO CHAPTER 1, 
GENERAL PROVISIONS, ESTABLISHING PUBLIC TREE CARE 
REGULATIONS; ESTABLISHING PUBLIC TREE CARE ADVISORY 
BOARD; PROVIDING FOR A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

WHEREAS, the City of Manor (“City”) desires to enhance the natural environment and 
public spaces through the continued care, maintenance, and planting of trees in the public spaces; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to make application to become a “Tree City USA” as 
designated by the Arbor Day Foundation; and  

WHEREAS, the City also desires to establish a Public Tree Advisory Committee which 
will develop a plan to oversee the protection, enhancement, and/or installation of trees in the 
public spaces and areas. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT; 

Section 1. Findings. All of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true 
and correct and are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if copied in their entirety.  

Section 2. Amendment of Code of Ordinances. The City Council hereby amends 
Chapter 1, General Provisions, of the City of Manor Code of Ordinances to add a new Article 
1.14, Public Tree Care section to read as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.14 PUBLIC TREE CARE  

Section 1.14.001 Purpose and Intent  

The purpose of this Article is to protect existing trees, promote the planting of new trees, 
and establish a City policy regarding the planting, maintenance, and removal of specified trees 
within the City’s public spaces and its environs. The intent of this subchapter is that it applies to 
all trees located on public property in the City limits. 

Section 1.14.002 Created and Established  

Public Tree Care provisions are hereby adopted, granting the City the legal authority over 
the care of all trees, plants and shrubs located within city-owned and controlled property, public 
rights-of-way, parks and other public places, which will aid in the establishment of a municipal 
landscape program and will enhance the public health, safety and beauty of the City.  

  



ORDINANCE NO. 559 Page 2
 

 

Section 1.14.003 Care of Public Trees 

(A)     The Public Works Director and/or designee shall have the responsibility to plant, 
prune, maintain and remove trees and woody plants on all City streets, rights-of-way, and/or City 
parks, as well as within any other City-owned and controlled property. The Public Works 
Director and/or designee, in appropriate cases, and upon consultation with a property owner and 
written permission, may remove or prune a tree on private property which threatens the safety of 
those who may use a public place. 

(B)     Property owners are responsible for the reasonable and routine maintenance of 
trees on the right-of-way which is an extension of the property owner's front yard and/or setback. 
This shall include maintaining a clearance over the sidewalk of eight feet (8'). 

(C)     The Public Works Director or designee may recommend the removal of any tree or 
part of a tree that threatens the safety of any person, property or structure by reason of its 
location. This shall include but is not limited to threats against electric lines, telephone lines, gas 
lines or any municipal water or sewer lines or any public improvement. Any tree which is 
affected by any injurious fungus, insect or other damaging biotic organism may also be removed. 

(D)     No person shall remove, destroy, prune, top or cause the removal, destruction, 
pruning or topping of a tree on City property or in any City park without first having obtained 
written permission for such removal, destruction, pruning, or topping from the Public Works 
Director and/or their designee. 

(E)     It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to attach any cable, wire, 
rope or sign to any City tree, plant or shrub without first having obtained written permission 
from the Public Works Director and/or their designee. 

Section 1.14.004 Establishment of a Public Tree Advisory Board 

  (A)  Creation.  There is hereby designated a committee to be known as the Public Tree 
Advisory Board. This committee is to function as an advisory board to City staff or City council, 
as the case may be, in regard to regulations pertaining to public trees.  

 (B) Membership. The Public Tree Advisory Board shall be composed of the then 
seated members of the City's Parks Committee, plus two members of P&Z who shall be selected 
by the City Council. All provisions related to membership service, including appointment by 
place, filling vacancies, residency requirements, attendance and terms of service are the same as 
those applicable to the City's Parks Committee. Additional duties of Parks Committee members, 
pertaining specifically to this Article, include the following.  

(B)  Duties.  

(1)  Promote the protection of healthy trees on public property;  

(2)  Coordinate and promote Arbor Day activities;  

(3)  Develop public awareness and education programs relating to trees in the 
city community;  



ORDINANCE NO. 559 Page 3
 

(4)  Review city department and public concerns relating to tree care on the 
city's public property;  

(5)  Consult with the state forest service for advice on protection of existing 
native or established trees and/or the planting of new native trees;  

(6)  Submit an annual application to renew the Tree City USA designation; and  

(7)  Other duties that may be assigned by the City Council. 

 Section 3.  Repealing all Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or parts thereof 
conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein are hereby 
amended to the extent of such conflict. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 
ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City of Manor (“City”), the terms and 
provisions of this ordinance shall control. 

 Section 4.   Savings Clause.  This City Council of the City of Manor, Texas hereby 
declares that if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, work or portion of 
this ordinance is declared invalid, or unconstitutional, by a court of competent jurisdiction, that, 
in such event that it would have passed and ordained any and all remaining portions of this 
ordinance without the inclusion of that portion or portions which may be so found to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, and declares that its intent is to make no portion of this Ordinance 
dependent upon the validity of any portion thereof, and that all said remaining portions shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

 Section 5.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any 
provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 

Section 6.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this ordinance was considered was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

 Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS the 6th day of November 2019. 

     THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

 
     ______________________________________ 
     Rita G. Jonse, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

 
_________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary 



 AGENDA ITEM NO.______

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 
 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:       

PREPARED BY:   

DEPARTMENT:  
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTATION: YES NO 
ATTACHMENTS: YES (IF YES, LIST IN ORDER TO BE PRESENTED) NO 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL NONE  

12

November 6, 2019

Thomas Bolt, City Manager

Administration 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on naming the new City’s Park on Lexington Street. 

 


	2019 11 06 CC Agenda
	A - Proclamation - National Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week
	Item 1 - Summary Form
	Item 1a - 2019 10 16 CC Draft Minutes
	Item 2 - Summary Form
	Item 2a - Annexation Map
	Item 3 - Summary Form
	Item 3a - Rezoning Map
	Item 4 - Summary Form
	Item 4a - Manor RV Annexation Ordinance
	Item 4b - Annexation Map
	Item 5 - Summary Form
	Item 5a - Ordinance - Rezone 13119 US Hwy 290E
	Item 5b - Ordinance Exhibit A
	Item 5c - Letter of Intent
	Item 5d - Notice Map
	Item 5e - Notice Letter and Labels
	Item 6 - Summary Form
	Item 6a - TIRZ Ordinance 558 - Project and Finance Plan
	Item 6b - Exhibit A - Project and Finance Plan
	2019-11-6_MAN_Manor Heights_FPFP
	Table of Contents
	Section 1: Introduction
	Section 2: Description and Maps
	Section 3: Proposed Changes to Ordinances, Plans, Codes, Rules and Regulations
	Section 4: Relocation of Displaced Persons
	Section 5: Estimated Non-Project Costs
	Section 6: Proposed Public Improvements
	Section 7: Estimated Project Costs
	Section 8: Economic Feasibility
	Section 9: Estimated Bonded Indebtedness
	Section 10: Appraised Value
	Section 11: Method of Financing
	Section 12: Duration of the Zone, Termination
	Section 13: TIRZ True Up
	List of Appendicies
	Appendix A – Legal Description
	Appendix B – Map
	Appendix C – List of Non-Project Costs
	Appendix D – List of Project Costs
	Appendix E – Estimated Timeline of Incurred Costs
	Appendix F – Feasibility Study
	Appendix G – True Up – Annual Percentage Calculation
	Appendix H – True Up – Feasibility Study (1 of 2)
	Appendix H – True Up – Feasibility Study (2 of 2)
	Appendix I – Development Agreement

	Manor Heights Agreement - CC app 2018 11 07
	20181213_133341


	Item 6c - TIRZ Letter - FORESTAR
	Item 7 - Summary Form
	Item 7a - Amendment to Development Agreement (Manor Heights)
	Item 7b - TIRZ Letter - FORESTAR
	Item 8 - Summary Form
	Item 8a - Assignment and Assumpiton of DA - Manor Heights
	Item 9 - Summary Form
	Item 9a - Project Letter and Addendum
	Item 10 - Summary Form
	Item 10a - Addendum 54
	Item 11 - Summary Form
	Item 11a - Ordinance 559 - Public Tree Care
	Item 12 - Summary Form



